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Five Year Financial Summary

AFEMBRE

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
HZ2000F HZ20085 HZo0075 HZ20065 HZ20055
12AMBLEE  128318ILEE  12R31HIEEE  12R31HIEEE  12R31BLLFE
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(BE5) (BE5) (&5 (BE5)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
FHET TEL BT THL TBL
Turnover Y
—Continuing operations - BERSER 15,155 4,206 204 - -
—Discontinued operations -BRETZER 19,279 38,532 75,772 72,200 65,640
34,434 42738 76,066 72,200 65,640
Result E1 |
—Continuing operation -BELERE
Loss before taxation BEAEE (32,940) (40,244) (36,673 (42,790) (12,919)
Income tax FrEH - - - - -
(32,940) (40,244) (36,679) (42,790) (12,919)
—Discontinued operation -BRIEAEER
Gain/ loss) from BRIHERET
discontinued operations 2WE/ (BR) 3,073 (9,543 (37,213) (61,440) (049,695)
(Loss),/ gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBLANE 11,503 (87,531) 66,909 - -
Income tax R (651) (2,830) (959) (820) (322)
14,015 (99,904) 28737 (62,260) (250,017)
Loss for the year TEERE (18,925) (140,148) (7,936) (105,050) (262,936)
Attributable to : ATATERBES :
Equity shareholders ARAREREA (18,784) (140,148) (7,936) (85,187) (252,841)
Minority interest LBREER (141) - - (19,869) (10,005)
(18,925) (140,148) (7,936) (105,050) (262,936)
Loss per share ERER
—Basic and diluted (HK Cents) -EARREE(BIL) (0.43) (3.31) 0.19) (2.69) (8.34)



Five Year Financial Summary

AFEMBRE

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
120095 120085 20075 20065 20055
12R31H 127318 127318 127318 12A318
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TBL TiEL TiEL
Assets and liabilities BEHER

Non-current assets ERBEE 228,481 113,165 194,386 558,382 580,724
Net current (liabilities), assets HHEE/(BE)F (4,384) 19,264 66,463 (294,270) (252,539)
Non-current liabilities FRBHEE (75,806) - - (160,000) (192,308)
Net assets EEFE 148,291 132,429 260,849 104,112 135,877
Minority Interests LR R ER (141) (122) - - (19,009)

Total equity attributable to ARAREREA
equity shareholders of the Company Eihagn 148,150 132,307 260,849 104,112 116,778

The above figures are based on the latest published financial
statements, except for the summary of results for each of two
years ended 31 December 2006 and assets and liabilities as at
31 December 2005 and 2006 which were restated due to the
change in presentation currency from Renminbi to Hong Kong
dollars.

TMEFHERAHTE I RRER -
A E2006F12A318 I —AFESF 2 %
EIEE - DA R H2005%F 200612 A31H 2
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Chairman’s Statement

FREEE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Company, | would like to present the audited
results of Genesis Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the 12 months ended 31
December 2009 to each shareholder on behalf of the Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In year 2009, the crude oil price in the international market
showed a volatile upward trend, among which the WTI Crude
Oil Futures price reached its trough at US$33.98 per barrel on
12 February, then bounced back steadily and hit the peak of the
year at US$81.37 per barrel on 21 October. Despite the fact that
the international crude oil price recovered apparently in 2009,
the domestic crude oil selling price, was far below the current
international market price under certain administrative regulation,
by which the price adjustment lagged behind the international
market. It is expected that the domestic crude oil price would
further be adjusted upward in the coming year due to steady
increase of international oil price.

As the domestic crude oil price still remained at low level, the
Group had taken full advantage of this opportunity to proactively
adjust its business portfolio, divest from its non-core business
and focus on core businesses of oil and natural gas development.
In May 2009, the Group sold its 72%-owned subsidiary, Xinjiang
Lejion Gas Co. Ltd. for HK$21 million and the disposal enabled
the Group to devote its resources to develop the core business.

In order to improve the efficiency of the Group’s business in the
United States, in June 2009, the Group entered into a letter of
intent with Bayhill Capital Corporation of the U.S., a company
whose shares are listed and traded on the OTC Bulletin Board,
to provide recommendations and development proposals for the
management and optimization of Grassy Trails oil field.

In February and September 2009, the Group successfully
acquired the Liuluoyu and Yanjiawan oil exploitation projects
located in Shaanxi Province, the PRC respectively. Production of
the oil fields was underway with a total of 160 wells. In addition to
the potential increase in sales income generated from the oil and
gas operation of the Group through these acquisitions, the Group
may also benefit from the possible appreciation of value of oil and
gas assets in the future.

BOMRE -
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H 41600 - RRWETEFEFSAEEBZHR
HWEWAKRERS  MAAEE I BN
REERBZAREAE-



Chairman’s Statement

FREEE

Despite the unfavorable economic conditions and challenges, the
Group’s core business maintained a momentum of growth. It was
mainly attributable to the joint efforts of the management and all
staff. The total crude oil production for the financial year ended
31 December 2009 amounted to 45,000 barrels, representing a
substantial increase as compared with 9,000 barrels in 2008.

FINANCING

To cope with the business expansion of the Group, in June 2009,
we issued a 4 Year 2%-coupon Convertible Note to the controlling
shareholder, Hong Chang Group, raising fund of HK$25 million
in aggregate. In April 2010, by way of placing of new shares for
subscriptions the Group will raise approximately HK$170 million.
This can further secure the Group’s cash flow, enabling the Group
to be well poised for acquisition of any potential projects in the
future.

MANAGEMENT EXCELLENCE

The management of the Group is committed to maintain a high
standard of corporate governance to protect shareholders’
interests and ensure the Group will continue to maintain steady
and sound development. With the joint efforts of the management
and all staff, the Group was honored the 349th in the “Top 500
Oversea Chinese Entrepreneurs in China’s Market” award (R
R EITH50058). Also, in May 2009, the Group was chosen by
Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI) to become one of the
constituent stocks of the MSCI China Index in the World Small
Cap Index Series.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Looking forward into the 2010, due to the economic recovery,
inflation and anticipated depreciation of the US dollars, it is
estimated that the crude oil price will maintain its upward trend
at slow pace. Demand for crude oil is expected to increase,
the International Energy Agency predicts that the global daily
demand for crude oil would reach 86.20 million barrels in 2010,
representing an increase of 1.3 million barrels as compared to
the previous year, basically resuming its pre-financial crisis level.
Nevertheless, the road of recovery for the global economy is still
full of uncertainties, international crude oil price will therefore
remain volatile.
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Chairman’s Statement

FREEE

The Group will take a conservative approach to identify
appropriate domestic investment opportunities and to acquire
more upstream oil and gas operations. Meanwhile, the Group will
launch certain scientific and rational measures to stabilize and
increase current production. The Board and the management are
confident that in 2010, the Group’s core business will continue to
grow steadily.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to give my sincere
gratitude to the Board and all staff for their wholehearted efforts.
Also, | am much obliged for the encouragement and support
from each of the shareholders as well as business partners and
acquaintances.

Kong Siu Tim
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 April 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREST R RS0

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2009, Genesis Energy Holdings
Limited (the “Company” or “Genesis Energy”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) recorded an increase
of turnover from continuing operations of oil exploitation by
2.6 times to HK$15.2 million (2008: HK$4.2 million) and loss
from continuing operations was HK$32.9 million (2008: loss of
HK$40.2 million), which has decreased by 18.2% compared with
that of last year. After taking into account of the gain on disposal
of the gas refilling operation, the loss for the year has been
substantially reduced by 86.5% to HK$18.9 million (2008: loss of
HK$140.1 million).

Year 2009 was a challenging year. The crude oil price tumbled
drastically from over US$100 per barrel to the level of less than
US$50 per barrel. This exerted an adverse impact on the turnover
and profit margin of the Group. To tackle with such an unfavorable
environment, the Company reacted promptly and actively by
controlling costs and enhancing operation efficiency. The Group
had worked continuously on restructuring our business portfolio.
During the year, the Group disposed of its gas refilling stations
business in Korla, Xinjiang, the PRC which enabled the Group to
reallocate its resources to develop the upstream business in the
oil and gas sector. The Group’s successful acquisitions of the
oil and natural gas oilfield exploitation projects in Liuluoyu and
Yanjiawan in Shaanxi, the PRC in February and September 2009
respectively, have further strengthened the core business and
cashflow of the Group.

Oil Exploitation

China

In February 2009, the Group successfully acquired the Liuluoyu oil
exploitation project located at Ganquan County, Shaanxi. This is
a producing oil field with about 100 wells and a stable production
of approximately 3,500 barrels each month. In addition to the
income generated from the daily operation of the oil field, the
Group may also benefit from the possible appreciation of value
of oil and gas assets in future. Moreover, undergoing this oil
exploitation project will enable the Group to have more extensive
understanding and participation in the oil and gas industry in
Shaanxi Province, the PRC. At the same time, we have built an
all rounded professional team to operate the oil and gas field.
The Group may further develop its business in this region when
suitable opportunities arise. This oil field has been operating
smoothly since acquisition and brought stable returns to the
Group during the year.

¥ OEE

B E2000F 128318 ALt - BIFTaERIER A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CELERE LR

In September 2009,
exploitation project located at Shaanxi. This is also a producing oil

the Group acquired the Yanjiawan oil

field with about 58 wells and a stable production of approximately
2,500 barrels each month. It also holds the right to further design
and drill new oil and gas wells in such area. This oil field has been
operating smoothly and is expected to bring stable returns to the
Group.

The United States

The Grassy Trails oil field is located in both Emery County and
Carbon County, Utah and encompasses an area of approximately
26 km?. The proven reserve of crude oil on Grassy Trails has been
revised up to about 1.8 million barrels. Although there are five oil
wells in operation, there have been some extensive re-work and
environment protection projects done on various wells during the
year, which has severely affected the production of the oil field.
This situation is expected to be improved in 2010.

The Group and an oil company in Nevada have formed a joint
venture company which holds the Squaw Canyon oil field.
This oil field locates in the Four Corners Area of Colorado,
New Mexico, Utah and Arizona. The oil field encompasses an
area of approximately 6.5 km?, with historical oil production
of approximately 114,000 barrels since 1984. As the oil field
has proven historical production record, the investment risk is
relatively low. Currently, there are two producing wells. During the
year, this oil field has operated efficiently and generated a steady
income stream for the Group.

Gas Refilling Stations

In May 2009, the Group entered into an agreement for the
disposal of its 72% equity interest in the operation of refilling
stations supplying natural gas and liquefied petroleum gas for
vehicle use in Korla City, Xinjiang, the PRC for a consideration of
HK$21 million. This disposal was completed in July 2009. Due
to the substantial increase in the cost of gas supply from the
second half of year 2009 onwards and the change in policy of
the local government to allow more competitors stepping into the
business of operating refilling stations of natural gas and liquefied
petroleum gas, the Board concluded the business prospects
would deteriorate. The Board considers that this disposal is in
the interests of the Company as it minimizes the potential loss
and re-allocates the internal resources into developing other more
promising businesses, particularly the upstream business in the
oil and gas sector.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Result for the Year

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group recorded an
increase in turnover from continuing operations of oil exploitation
by 260% to HK$15.2 million (2008: HK$4.2 million) and loss
from continuing operations was HK$32.9 million (2008: loss of
HK$40.2 million), which has decreased by 18.2% compared with
that of last year. After taking into account the gain on disposal
of the gas refilling operation, the loss for the year has been
substantially reduced by 86.5% to HK$18.9 million (2008: loss of
HK$140.1 million).

The consolidated gross loss for year 2009 was HK$5.1 million
(2008: gross loss of HK$1.9 million). As mentioned above, the
reason for the gross loss is because there have been some
extensive re-work and environment protection projects done on
various wells which have severely affected the production of the
oil field during the year. Therefore, this has been a direct impact
to the performance of the consolidated gross profit for the year.
During the year, the management has implemented strict measure
of cost control and administration expenses have decreased by
31.2% to HK$23.8 million (2008: HK$34.7 million). Apart from
cost control, the Group has actively sought for energy operations
that would provide stable cashflow, and such efforts included the
acquisition of two oil exploitation projects in Shaanxi during the
year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREST R RS0

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure
As at 31 December 2009, the net assets of the Group were
HK$148.3 million (31 December 2008: HK$132.4 million) while
its total assets were HK$246.2 million (31 December 2008:
HK$150 million). As at 31 December 2009 and 31 December
2008, the Group’s gross borrowings (excluding borrowing from
the controlling shareholder) net of cash and bank balances
was nil, therefore the gearing ratio based on total assets was
0% accordingly. The current ratio as at 31 December 2009
was 0.8 (31 December 2008: 2.1). In terms of the gearing ratio
and current ratio, the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2009 was slightly inferior to that of last year. However,
in view of the anticipating cash flow from the upstream operation,
the issue of a 4 year convertible note to Hong Chang Group
(the controlling shareholder) for a sum of HK$25 million during
the year; and subsequently in April 2010, with the issue of new
shares for a sum of approximately HK$170 million, the Board
is confident that the Group will gradually be back on the track
of a healthy financial position. The Group will be able to take
advantage of new attractive oil and gas and other energy related
investment opportunities that may arise.

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales and
purchases transactions and recognized assets and liabilities that
are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency
of the operations to which they relate. At 31 December 2009, no
related hedges were made by the Group. In respect of trade and
other receivables and payables held in currencies other than the
functional currency of the operations to which they relate, the
Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable
level, by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

POLICIES

As at 31 December 2009, the Group employed approximately
82 employees. The remuneration policies of the Group are
based on the prevailing remuneration level in the market and the
performance of respective companies and individual employees.

REEE  MBERREXLEE
R2009F12A31H  AEBWEEFE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Kong Siu Tim, aged 44, was appointed as Non-Executive
Director of the Company in August 2005 and redesignated as
Executive Director of the Company in November 2005. Mr. Kong
has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
of the Company in January 2008 and March 2009 respectively.
Mr. Kong holds a master degree of Economics at University
of Warwick, UK. Mr. Kong has years of experience in banking
and securities industries and he is a member of the Hong Kong
Securities Institute.

Mr. Jiang Rizhong, aged 52, was appointed as Executive
Director of the Company in March 2009. Before joining the
Group, Mr. Jiang had been the Chief Engineer of Fujian
Fengquan Environmental Protection Company responsible for
the development and advancement of new products and related
technology, the design and implementation of automatic systems
and the development of medical waste incinerators. He was
also in charge of the medical waste incineration projects in
Nangong, Beijing and the household refuse handling project in
Zhuji, Zhejiang. Mr. Jiang holds a bachelor degree of mechanical
engineering and a master degree in fluid mechanics and machines
from Northeastern University, China and a doctoral degree
in physical oceanography and limnology from Swiss Federal
Institute of Technology in Lausanne, Switzerland. From 1984 to
1990, Mr. Jiang conducted research on general fluid mechanics,
two-phase flow theory and its applications. He also carried out
design and development of fluid machinery such as ventilators
and pumps at the Department of Mechanical Engineering at
Northeastern University. From 1990 to 1997, Mr. Jiang had been
a research engineer at Swiss Federal Institute of Technology
in Lausanne, Switzerland, conducting systematic research on
the issues regarding turbulence, mixing and internal waves in
stratified flows and energy dissipation with various experiment
methods and advanced instruments, and computed the energy
dissipation in a hydraulic distribution system for European Nuclear
Research Center. He conducted teaching and research work at
the Department of Mechanical Engineering, Ryerson Polytechnic
University, Toronto, Canada in 1997 and 1998. Mr. Jiang has
years of research and working experience in Europe, North
America and China and possesses solid knowledge and extensive
experiences in resolving technical issues, project management
and science research as well.
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Mr. Wan Tze Fan Terence, aged 45, was appointed as
Executive Director of the Company in March 2009. Mr. Wan has
been appointed as financial controller and company secretary of
the Company since April 2001. Mr. Wan holds a bachelor degree
of commerce and a master degree of business administration. He
has years of experience in accounting and financial management
and has worked for international accounting firms and listed
companies in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Certified Practising
Accountant of CPA Australia.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ni Zhenwei, aged 73, was appointed as Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in November 2005.
Professor Ni graduated at Tsinghua University in 1959, majoring
in mechanical engineering. Since then, he had been teaching and
conducting research activities at the Tsinghua University. In 1987,
Professor Ni obtained his qualification as an associate researcher
in Tsinghua University and retired in 1996. Professor Ni is an
independent non-executive director of Hong Kong listed VST
Holdings Limited. He is also a senior advisor to Korea’s POSCO
Group, China Oceanwide Group, STIG Limited, EC Guard Limited
and a number of conglomerates.

Mr. Yip Ching Shan, aged 47, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in July 2003. He
graduated from Jinan University, Guangzhou, PRC in 1988 with
a bachelor degree in Finance. He obtained his master degree in
Economic from Kobe University of Commerce, Japan in 1991. Mr.
Yip also worked for several multi-national banks and securities
houses in Japan and Hong Kong. He has over 10 years of
experience in financial field.

Mr. Wong Kwok Chuen Peter, aged 50, was appointed as
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in April
2006. Mr. Wong is currently a practising barrister-at-law of the
High Court of the Hong Kong SAR. Mr. Wong holds a master
degree of commerce in marketing from University of Strathclyde,
UK and a post-graduate certificate in laws from University of
Hong Kong. Mr. Wong has more than 16 years of extensive
experience in legal practice.
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Technical Team

Mr. Li Guoyu has joined the Group as Chief Technical Consultant
since April 2007. He is a senior engineer at the professor level.
Mr. Li graduated from the Geological Department of Lanzhou
University. He was elected the academician of Russian Academy
of Natural Science in 1988. Mr. Li was also the Head of Crude
Oil and Gas Resource Bureau of China National Petroleum
Corporation and took part in the discovery of major oilfields in
China including Karamay, Daging, Shengli, North China and
Dagang etc.. Mr. Li was awarded the National Special Award
for Scientific-technical Progress in Pohai Oilfield. Mr. Li is the
author of thirty-five petroleum geology books including “China
Atlas of Oil and Gas Basins” and “World Atlas of Oil and Gas
Basins” etc. and has published more than 84 research papers
and articles in famous professional journals in the United States,
Russia, Britain and France. Mr. Li has launched the new school
of geological theory called “Sedimentary Basin Theory” in 1978
which was widely recognised by fellow geologists in the following
30th International Geologist Meeting and generally applied by the
worldwide petroleum industry in production, scientific research
and teaching. Mr. Li was also a professor of China Petroleum
University, Xian Petroleum College, Texas University in the United
States and Siberian University in Russia.

Dr. Xie Da Jin has joined our Group as the deputy general
manager of Xian Hong Chang Petroleum Development and
Service Company Ltd. and the Group’s Chief Geologist since
February 2008. Dr. Xie graduated with a bachelor degree in
petroleum exploration from Chang Chun Geology Institute
in 1982. He also holds a doctoral degree in geophysics and
information technology from Jilin University. Dr. Xie has over 26
years of extensive experience in the oil and gas industry and
had been in charge of various petroleum exploration and oilfield
construction projects. He was the Deputy Division Chief of the
Exploration Technology Department of the Northeast Oil Bureau,
Sinopec (the “Oil Bureau”) from 1999 to 2002. Prior to this, he
was the head of the exploration/technical department of the Oil
Bureau from 1982 to 1987 and then the project director at the
Beijing office of the Oil Bureau until 1994.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to high standards of corporate governance for the
purpose of providing a framework and solid foundation for its
business operation and development. The Company considers
that effective corporate governance with probity, transparency
and accountability makes an important contribution to corporate
success and to enhancement of shareholders value.

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year
2009 except for Code Provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1. Code Provision
A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term and subject to re-election. None of the existing
non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company is appointed for a specific term.
However, as all of them are subject to the retirement provisions
of the Bye-laws of the Company, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting
than those in the Code. The deviation from Code Provision A.2.1
is detailed in the section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer” below.

THE BOARD

The Board is structured to ensure it is of a high calibre and has
a balance of key skills and knowledge. The Board comprises
three executive Directors, namely Mr. Kong Siu Tim (Chairman),
Mr. Jiang Rizhong and Mr. Wan Tze Fan Terence and three
independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) required under
Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, namely Mr. Ni Zhenwei, Mr. Yip
Ching Shan and Mr. Wong Kwok Chuen Peter. Mr. Yip Ching
Shan has appropriate qualifications and accounting related
financial expertise required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules. There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors. All the three INEDs
are independent under these independence criteria, and with
their wide range of skills and experience to the Group, they are
capable to effectively exercise independent judgment on issues of
strategy, performance, risk and people through their contribution
at Board and committee meetings.
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The Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate
for discharging their duties as Directors in the best interest of
the Company and that the current board size is adequate for its
present operations. Each of the Directors keeps abreast of his
responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company.

The biographical details of the Directors are listed in the section
of “Directors and Senior Management Profiles” in this annual
report and that the INEDs are expressly identified in all of the
Company’s publication such as circular, announcement or relevant
corporate communications in which the names of Directors of the
Company are disclosed.

The Board conducts meeting on a regular basis and on ad hoc
basis to meet its business needs. The attendance of individual
Directors at board meetings and at two other board committees
(the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee) during
the year is set out as below.
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Meetings Attended/Held during term of office in 2009

HFER SR FR2009F EHHERTHESE

Remuneration

Board Committee Committee
EEg FMESE
Number of meetings held FEERETERYE 9 1
during the year
Executive Directors BITEE
Kong Siu Tim (Chairman) LM () 9/9 1/1
Jiang Rizhong (appointed on e =l 3/5 -
3 March 2009)
Wan Tze Fan Terence (appointed on B 5/5 -
3 March 2009)
Xing Xiao Jing (resigned on piili=t 4/4 -
3 March 2009)
Ma Ji (resigned on 3 March 2009) 5] 1/4 -
Independent Non-executive
Directors BIFERITES
Ni Zhenwei RIR(E 2/9 1/1
Yip Ching Shan Z251 3/9 1/1
Wong Kwok Chuen Peter 2 2/9 -
Notes:
1. Mr Jiang Rizhong and Mr. Wan Tze Fan Terence were appointed = A B %A KR T B 5 £ R2009F3 A3H &
Executive Directors on 3 March 2009. ZERATES -
2. Mr. Kong Siu Tim was appointed Chairman and member of LA A R2009F3AHEZ T AEXE R

Remuneration Committee on 3 March 2009.

3. Ms. Xing Xiao Jing resigned as Chairman, Executive Director and

member of Remuneration Committee on 3 March 2009.

4. Mr. Ma Ji resigned as Executive Director on 3 March 2009.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be segregated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company does not have
separate Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Kong Siu
Tim currently holds both positions. In light of the current size and
development of the Company, the Board believes that vesting the
roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same
person provides the Company with consistent leadership. On the
one hand, he can provide leadership to the Board and ensure
that the Board discharges its responsibilities effectively, including
formulating corporate strategies and plans in conjunction with
the Board and ensuring that Directors receive complete, accurate
and timely information and are properly briefed on issues arising
at Board meetings. On the other hand, he is responsible for
the effective management and operation of the Company,
including monitoring and controlling the operational and financial
performance within the Group and implementing the Company’s
strategy and policies for achieving its objectives.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL

The Company’s Bye-laws provide that each Director is required
to retire by rotation at least once every three years and that
one-third (or the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) of the Directors shall retire by rotation every year at the
Company’s annual general meeting. Retiring Directors shall
be eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company. In considering the nomination of a new director, the
Board will take into account the qualification, in particular any
qualification as required in the Listing Rules, ability, working
experience, leadership and professional ethics of the candidates
that, in the opinion of the Directors, will enable them to make a
positive contribution to the performance of the Board. The Board
considers that the existing human resource policy in recruitment
of new senior staff is also applicable to nomination of a new
director. As the Board is responsible for selection and approval
of candidates for appointment as directors to the Board, the
Company has not established a nomination committee for the
time being.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Apart from the fiduciary duty and statutory responsibility towards
the Company and the Group, the Board is responsible for the
management of the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing the Company and shareholders’ value.
Key responsibilities include formulation of the Group’s overall
strategies, setting of corporate and management targets,
monitoring of operational and financial matters, approval of major
capital expenditures, material acquisitions and disposal of assets,
corporate or financial restructuring, material borrowings and any
issuing, or buying back, of equity securities. Responsibility for
delivering Company’s objectives and running the business on a
day-to-day basis is delegated to divisional management who have
been given clear guidelines and directions as to their authority.

The Company has adopted the Model Code (the “Model Code”)
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code
of conduct and rules governing dealing by all directors in the
securities of the company.

All the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard regarding directors’ securities dealings set out
in the Model Code during the year.

SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION
The Company updates the Directors from time to time with
development in the laws and regulations relevant to their role as
director of the Company. Directors are also encouraged to update
their skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Group through
initial induction, ongoing participation at Board and committee
meetings.

The Company’s senior management regularly supplies the
Board and its committees with adequate information in a timely
manner to enable them to make informed decisions. All Directors
have access to Board papers and related materials that will
assist them for decision making. Any Director, wishing to do so
in the furtherance of his or her duties, may take independent
professional advice through the Company’s expense.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company’s objective for its remuneration policy is to
maintain fair and competitive packages based on business
requirements and industry practice. The Board has established
a Remuneration Committee which comprises three members
with a majority of whom are INEDs, namely Mr. Kong Siu Tim,
Mr. Ni Zhenwei, Mr. Yip Ching Shan. The committee is chaired
by an INED, Mr. Yip Ching Shan. The Remuneration Committee
meets at least once a year. With reference to business needs and
company development, individual performance and contribution,
changes in relevant markets and general economic situation, the
Remuneration Committee reviews and recommends to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneration of the
Directors and senior management. During the review process, no
individual director is involved in decisions relating to his or her
own remuneration. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is made available to the public on request and by
including the information on the Company’s website to ensure full
compliance with the code provision B.1.4 of the Code.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board is accountable for proper stewardship of the
Company’s affairs, and is responsible for ensuring that the
Group keeps fair and accurate accounting records which
disclose its financial position. The Directors also acknowledge
their responsibility to prepare the financial statements of the
Group in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. This responsibility extends to both interim
and the annual reports.

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish, maintain
and review the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
controls to ensure that shareholders’ investments and the Group’s
assets are safeguarded.
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In order to improve the level of corporate governance and
safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets,
under the guidance of the Code, the Group has performed
a comprehensive review for the internal control system
systematically annually with an aim to establish an effective and
comprehensive internal control system within the Group.

The Group and its principal subsidiaries are trying to establish
a variety of more effective and stringent regulations and
management system for corporate internal controls. As such,
subject to the requirements of the Group, all principal subsidiaries
of the Group will complete the preparation of corporate internal
control system in respect of control environment and control
procedure with reference to their respective operational and
managerial characteristics.

The internal control system of the Group covers all material
control requirements, including financial controls, operational
controls, compliance controls and risk management functions.
The Board of the Company has ongoing comprehensive review on
the Group’s internal control systems and risk management which
with execution in good condition and no significant control failures
or weaknesses have been noted. The board considered that
these systems of internal controls were effective and sufficient to
guarantee the Group in achieving its operation and governance
objectives.

The Group will constantly improve and strengthen its corporate
control with reference to changes in the operating environment
in order to enhance its corporate governance and safeguard the
interests of its shareholders. The Board will continue to carry out
regular review on the internal control system. The assessment
shall cover all material controls and the management will regularly
present particular report to the Audit Committee and report to the
Board in a timely manner. All these aim at ensuring the efficient
utilization of and adding value to the Group’s assets, reducing
corporate management risk and providing a better protection to
shareholders’ interests.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee assists the Board in discharging its
responsibilities for corporate governance, financial reporting
and corporate control. The Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely Mr. Ni Zhenwei, Mr. Yip Ching Shan and Mr. Wong Kwok
Chuen Peter, and is chaired by Mr. Yip Ching Shan. None of the
Audit Committee members are members of the former or existing
auditors of the Company. The Committee meets at least twice a
year. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the
completeness, accuracy and fairness of the Company’s financial
statements, evaluating the Company’s auditing scope and
procedures as well as its internal control systems and to review
the interim and final financial statements before their submission
to the Board and the annual general meeting for approval. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including
independent access to and advice from external auditors. The
terms of reference which describes the authorities and duties
of the Audit Committee has been adopted with reference to “A
Guide for Effective Audit Committees” published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in accordance
with Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee is made available to the public on request
and by including the information on the Company’s website to
ensure full compliance with the code provision C.3.4 of the Code.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

BDO Limited were appointed as external auditors of the Company
by shareholders at the 2009 Annual General Meeting until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting.

During the year, the fees paid or payable to the external auditors
of the Company, BDO Limited were approximately HK$700,000
for statutory audit services rendered (excluding disbursement
fees) to the Group.

The reporting responsibilities of BDO Limited, the auditors, are
stated in the Auditors’ Report on page 34 of the Annual Report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communication
with shareholders as well as investors. Information in relation
to the Group is disseminated to shareholders and investors in
a timely manner through a number of formal channels include
interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars. Annual
general meetings and special general meetings also provide a
useful forum for shareholders to share views with the Board.
Members of the Board (including member(s) of the Audit and
Remuneration Committees) attend shareholders’ meetings and
make themselves available to answer shareholders’ questions.
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The directors submit their annual report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009, which
are set out on pages 36 to 136.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in exploitation, development
and operation of crude oil and natural gas fields in the People’s
Republic of China and the United States. In July 2009, the Group
ceased its business of gas refilling stations.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 22
to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 35(a) to the financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 35(b) to the financial
statements and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
respectively.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 4 and 5.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales to the Group'’s five largest customers took up
44% of the turnover for the year from continuing and discontinued
operations and the largest customer accounted for approximately
40.85% of the Group’s turnover for the year from continuing and
discontinued operations. The aggregate purchases attributable
to the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 80% and the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 43% of the Group’s
total purchases for the year.

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kong Siu Tim (Chairman)

Mr. Jiang Rizhong (appointed on 3 March 2009)

Mr. Wan Tze Fan Terence (appointed on 3 March 2009)
Ms. Xing Xiao Jing (resigned on 3 March 2009)

Mr. Ma Ji (resigned on 3 March 2009)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ni Zhenwei

Mr. Yip Ching Shan

Mr. Wong Kwok Chuen Peter

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-law 87(1), Mr. Ni Zhenwei and Mr.
Yip Ching Shan will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election. All other remaining directors continue
in office.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of the
directors (the “Directors”) and chief executive of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company

EENIRG RAEMRG P2 ER

H2009F12A31H  ARRAIES([EF]) K&
THRBERARARREEMEEEZE (ABFE
FHREE GO ([FHREEGED ) EXVILAT
My olmzE) 2lkh - HEROERESSTHE
WINARRIRBER R E GO FEI2EFE
ZERMAHKBRE LT RARESTHEITES
RPZIZESTA ([ZESFA) MAEME AR

ARBEBAER
Bm AR

SRBERAR (R 2

REAABRGRERKRGPHERZEZTA

Interests in shares/ Nature of Number of shares/
Name of Director underlying shares interest underlying shares held
EEps PR 5 R ARRA R 3 2R Ny Fiisig iy, HHEA R K8 E
Kong Siu Tim Shares Beneficial owner 11,500,000
LA E A& EnlAA
Share Options Beneficial owner 61,000,000
BB E EnlEAA
Wan Tze Fan Terence Shares Beneficial owner 6,660,000
PRk 15 EnlEAA
Share Options Beneficial owner 40,000,000
fErE EnmEBA
Ni Zhenwei Share Options Beneficial owner 6,000,000
RIx(E fErE EnEBA
Yip Ching Shan Shares Beneficial owner 1,500,000
ZE51 30 EnEBA
Share Options Beneficial owner 6,000,000
-9 EnlAA
Wong Kwok Chuen Peter Share Options Beneficial owner 8,000,000

S

A

Note: Particulars of directors’ interests in the share options of the

Company are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme”.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none of the
Directors nor any of their associates had any interests in the
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company on 6 March 2002. The Scheme is in full
compliance with the relevant requirements of Chapter 17 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rule”). The purpose of the Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to the eligible participants of the
Group in recognition of their contribution to the Group. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include any full-time employees and
executive and non-executive directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries and any suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers.
The Scheme became effective on 6 March 2002 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval
of the limit and such limit may be refreshed by shareholders in
general meeting. However, the total maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.
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The maximum entitlement for any eligible person (other than a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or any of their respective associates) is that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options granted and to be granted in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of the latest grant does not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at the relevant time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in general meeting. The period within
which an option may be exercised will be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option may be
exercised later than 10 years from 6 March 2002.

The exercise price in relation to each option shall be determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion, but in any event shall not
be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date
of grant of such option; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
such option; and (iii) the nominal value of a share on the date of
grant of such option.

Some further disclosures relating to the Scheme are set out in
note 34 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2009, the directors and employees of the
Group had the following personal interests in options to subscribe
for shares of the Company granted at nominal consideration
under the Scheme. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one share. Details of share options held by the
Directors and employees of the Group and movements in such
holdings during the year ended 31 December 2009 are as follows:
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Number of options
BREXE
Exercised/
Outstanding  Granted lapsed  Outstanding at
at 1 January during during 31 December Exercise price
2009  the year the year 2009 Date of grant  Exercise period per share
20005 120095F
1A18 RER RER 12A318 BREHhz
RIS Rt TR/%Y R3S RHBH TSR TR
(D.M.Y) (D.M.Y) HK$
(B.A.%) (B.A.%) BT
Directors:
s
Kong Siu Tim 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 02.11.2005 03.11.2005-02.11.2010 0.035
Lo 25,000,000 - - 25,000,000 02.11.2006 02.11.2006-01.11.2011 0.053
17,000,000 - - 17,000,000 22.08.2007 22.08.2007-05.03.2012 0.375
9,000,000 - - 9,000,000 21.08.2008 21.08.2008-05.03.2012 0.180
5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 07.11.2008 07.11.2008-05.03.2012 0.060
Wan Tze Fan Terence 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 02.11.2005 03.11.2005-02.11.2010 0.035
aFE 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000 02.11.2006 02.11.2006-01.11.2011 0.053
10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 22.08.2007 22.08.2007-05.03.2012 0.375
5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 21.08.2008 21.08.2008-05.03.2012 0.180
2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 07.11.2008 07.11.2008-05.03.2012 0.060
Ni Zhenwei 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 22.08.2007 22.08.2007-05.03.2012 0.375
fifx (& 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 21.08.2008 21.08.2008-05.03.2012 0.180
2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - 07.11.2008 07.11.2008-05.03.2012 0.060
Yip Ching Shan 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 22.08.2007 22.08.2007-05.03.2012 0.375
EEWL 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 21.08.2008 21.08.2008-05.03.2012 0.180
2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - 07.11.2008 07.11.2008-05.03.2012 0.060
Wong Kwok Chuen Peter 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 22.08.2007 22.08.2007-05.03.2012 0.375
BA2 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 21.08.2008 21.08.2008-05.03.2012 0.180
2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 07.11.2008 07.11.2008-05.03.2012 0.060
Employees 22,000,000 - 3,000,000 19,000,000 02.11.2005 03.11.2005-02.11.2010 0.035
&8 85,000,000 - 30,000,000 55,000,000 02.11.2006 02.11.2006-01.11.2011 0.058
295,250,000 - 7,000,000 288,250,000 26.01.2007 26.02.2007-25.02.2012 0.189
361,000,000 - (Note 2) 500,000 360,500,000 22.08.2007 22.08.2007-05.03.2012 0.375
40,000,000 - 7,100,000 32,900,000 21.08.2008 21.08.2008-05.03.2012 0.180
127,000,000 - 35,700,000 91,300,000 07.11.2008 07.11.2008-05.03.2012 0.060
Notes: f3E -
1. During the year, the weighted average closing price of the 1. FRN - ARDABROREBETEBE/{TEE

Company’s shares immediately before the dates on which the

options were exercised was HK$0.2347 per share.

2. During the year, 500,000 options lapsed due to cessation of

employment of participant with the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the sections “Directors’ Interests
in Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Scheme”,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
associated corporations a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors of the Company or any of their spouses or children
under eighteen years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
As at 31 December 2009, the following persons, not being a
Director or chief executive of the Company, had an interest
or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company

EFEERMSES ZER

BRI EE R KB MD 2 Eas] MREAX
Bt E I EERIN KRR E DA HEE
B BB 0 F N B R AT S 2 B BUE
ARAEERFEFEMEBHIBENTFX
RBAXRB K AEAMD BB 2 B
BExmE o

FTERFZES

2009F 128318 * M FA L (WIHEARFE
FRITHAER) RIBIRESR R BB KHI5$336
BEEZELMAARARR KRG XA
B EERERIOAR

REAABRGRERKRGPHERZEZTA

Total number

Number of of shares
Number of underlying and underlying
Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held shares held shares held
Fis4E0R FRisis i &
BR&E Ry FisEHnEE L S 1HEARE a8
Hong Chang China Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 1,592,795,650 - 1,592,795,650
EEFEERAR (M) EmfEA
Hong Chang Group Limited (Note 1, 3) Beneficial owner 61,035,000 54,347,826 115,382,826
BEREABRAA (1, 3) BEmfEA
Interest of controlled 1,592,795,650 - 1,592,795,650
corporation
EEHIA R MR
Xing Xiao Jing Beneficial owner 43,000,000 18,000,000 61,000,000
(Note 1, 2 and 3) ERHEEA
OBz & (Mi5E1, 2 and 3)
Interest of controlled 1,653,830,650 54,347,826 1,708,178,476
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Notes:

1. 1,5692,795,650 shares are owned by Hong Chang China Limited,
a company wholly owned by Hong Chang Group Limited which
in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Xing Xiao Jing. In
addition, Hong Chang Group Limited directly and beneficially owns
61,035,000 shares in the Company.

2. Ms. Xing Xiao Jing is also beneficially interested in options for

subscription of 18,000,000 shares of the Company.

3. On 30 April 2009, the Company and Hong Chang Group Limited
entered into a subscription agreement in respect of the issue by
the Company to Hong Chang Group Limited convertible notes (the
“Convertible Note”) in the principal amount of HK$25,000,000 due
in 2013 carrying an interest of 2% per annum with right to convert
the Convertible Note into shares of the Company at a conversion
price of HK$0.46 per share. Based on the conversion price, a
maximum number of 54,347,826 shares may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible
Note in full. The issue of Convertible Note was subsequently
approved by the shareholders and then completed in July 2009.
The Convertible Note has given rise to an interest in 54,347,826
underlying shares of the Company of each of Hong Chang Group

Limited and Ms. Xing Xiao Jing.

Saved as disclosed above in this section, as at 31 December
2009, the Company has not been notified of any other persons
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who
had any interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of retirement schemes operated by local authorities in
the PRC. The Group also operates a defined contribution scheme
covering full time employees in Hong Kong. Details of employee
retirement benefits are set out in note 33 to the financial
statements.

GEE

Bk £ 3CPT 3 BE & S

1,692,795,650/% A% {7 J5 1 %6 & 1 Bl B R 2 7]
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EnEE oI BEXKEARAREER
B X HH61,035,0000 8815 °
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Report of the Directors

EEERESE

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the directors’ remuneration and highest paid
individuals’ emoluments are set out in note 10 and note 11 to the
financial statements respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
Save as disclosed in note 44 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance subsisted at any time during the year to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had material interest, whether
directly or indirectly.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its directors, as of the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of the shares with not less
than 25% of the total issued shares of the Company as required
under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year have been audited by BDO
Limited who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

By order of the Board
Kong Siu Tim
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 April 2010
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BIABBENRES

Tel: +852 2541 5041
B D O Fax: +852 2815 2239

www.bdo.com.hk

E &G 0 +852 2541 5041

EH : +852 2815 2239

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
BAETHBTR

IKEZH L2518

www.bdo.com.hk

Independent Auditors’ Report to the shareholders of
Genesis Energy Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Genesis
Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(Collectively referred as to the “Group”) set out on pages 36 to
136, which comprise the consolidated and Company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2009, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BIABBENRES

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group as at 31 December 2009 and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants
16 April 2010

Shiu Hong NG
Practising Certificate Number PO3752

Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

ZEEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 &; £2009F 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA# et &)

2009 2008
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bt & TFHERT FHET
(restated)
(&e=751)
Continuing operations FEGEEET
Turnover EER 5&16 15,155 4,206
Direct costs BERA (20,241) (6,120
Gross loss EiE (5,086) (1,914)
Other revenue =N 6 2,283 1,133
Other gains and (losses), net HElam & (E8) F8 7 1,049 (357)
Administrative and other T R E At
operating expenses EiEE A (23,897) (34,734)
Loss from operations BEEBE (25,651) (35,872)
Finance costs A& B AR 8(a) (1,767) -
Share of loss of a jointly E(REEIEEEE
controlled entity NAEE 21 (5,522) (4,372)
Loss before income tax B # w5
expenses -] 8 (32,940) (40,244)
Income tax expenses FriS i & 9 - -
Loss for the year from BEEELERZ
continuing operations XEERHIE (32,940) (40,244)
Discontinued operations ERIEEEET
Profit/(loss) for the year from ERIEREFEBE 2
discontinued operations REZRF,(EB) 12 14,015 (99,904)
Loss for the year REEEE (18,925) (140,148)
Other comprehensive income, Hofth 2 Yeam
after tax B i 1%
Exchange differences REGINER 2
on translating foreign operation ERER 364 7,351
Less: Reclassification of exchange  J& : & — /&SN B A A
reserve to profit or loss ZENFEEEA
upon disposal of a B R W
foreign subsidiary 36(a) (16,456) -
Other comprehensive income AEZHMEEY =
for the year (16,092) 7,351
Total comprehensive income AEEETEKR=ZBE
for the year (35,017) (132,797)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)"

FEEZEWER(E) -

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; £2009F12 A31H I F & 'i..h "l,\
o

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA# et &)

2009 2008
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B 5 TFHERT FHET Yoo
(restated) -
(#eE5)
Loss attributable to: LT ALRE(EEE :
Equity holders of the Company RABIRERB A 13 (18,784) (140,148)
Minority interests D ER R A (141) -
(18,925) (140,148)
Total comprehensive income AR AT EABEEE K
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company RAGIRERFB A (34,876) (132,797)
Minority interests D ER R R A (141) -
(35,017) (132,797)
Earnings/(loss) per share BRAEFR,(EHE)
— Basic and diluted —EAR RS 15
— From continuing and —REFELERERIE (0.43) HK cents  (3.31) HK cents
discontinued operations KBTS Al AL
— From continuing operations —REAFELEEETR (0.75) HK cents  (0.95) HK cents
&l P
— From discontinued operations —REBRIEEEFET 0.32 HK cents  (2.36) HK cents
& il AL
b
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fr & M Ek AR

At 31 December 2009 7200912 A31H
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA# et &)

2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$ 000
Bt F#T F#ET TATT TABIT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment %1% - BE k& 17 115,805 42,300
Prepaid lease payments HEEFKRIE 18 - 1,233
Intangible assets B EE 19 95,434 48,673
Goodwill BES 20 4,230 =
Interest in a jointly controlled 7 — i R 5 i

entity ABERARZIELR 21 9,606 15,128
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 23 = 1,431
Pledged deposits [ELErE 24 1,130 2,316
Deposits paid Btz 2,276 2,084
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 228,481 113,165
Current assets mENEE
Inventories & 25 446 51
Trade and other receivables, FEULBR F - E A UG BR 3R -

deposits and prepayments e MEARIE 26 6,740 3,703
Note receivable FE U = 55 27 - 13,500
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEFEEY 28 10,535 19,622
Total current assets MEEEBR 17,721 36,876
Total assets HEE 246,202 150,041
Current liabilities HREEE
Other payables and accruals HEMmENZFEBERERER 29 (21,767) (16,532)
Provisions A 30 (338) (338)
Taxation el - (742)
Total current liabilities B A EER (22,105) (17,612)
Net current (liabilities)/assets HE (&fE) EEFE (4,384) 19,264
Total assets less current BEERREBER

liabilities

224,097

132,429
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position flhs o
V.S LI
FEMBIRRRE -
At 31 December 2009 2009412 531 H "i..a ""',\_
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA# et &) " -
2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$' 000 HKS$ 000
B E F#IT TF#&IT TH&T THT .
Non-current liabilities EREE B
Convertible note AR R % 31 (16,824) =
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE 32 (12,461) =
Amount due to a controlling
equity holder JE 15 22 AR B BR SRR 44(d) (46,521) =
Total non-current liabilities ERB B ERE (75,806) -
NET ASSETS BEFE 148,291 132,429
Capital and reserves AATIREHBEA
attributable to equity FEIL & A B i
holders of the Company
Share capital fi& 2 35(a) 43,861 42,269
Reserves G 104,289 90,038
Equity attributable to equity RAFIRERE A
holders of the Company FE 4 7 2 148,150 132,307
Minority interests DY RER 141 122
TOTAL EQUITY S 148,291 132,429
On behalf of the Board RREZT

Kong Siu Tim
PR
Director

EF

Wan Tze Fan Terence

m ¥ Eh
Director

EZE

B AR 2A A e 2009 F #H
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Statement of Financial Position

A1 55 4R 5L R

At 31 December 2009 7200912 A31H
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA# et &)

2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$ 000
(=2 Fi#IT Fi#&IT &L BT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets EREEE
Interests in subsidiaries N SENE P F 22 92,983 124,910
Current assets HENEE
Other receivables, deposits B RIE - e Kk

and prepayments TES FRIE 26 562 625
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 28 55 1,536
Total current assets MEEEMRTE 617 2,161
Total assets BEE 93,600 127,071
Current liabilities it A=K
Other payables and accruals HEmENZEBERERER 29 (2,185) (1,778)
Net current (liabilities)/assets #ME) (BfE) S&EEHE (1,568) 383
Non-current liabilities EREE R
Convertible note AR =5 31 (16,824) =
NET ASSETS BSEFE 74,591 125,293
Capital and reserves AATIREHBEA

attributable to equity FEIL & A B &

holders of the Company

Share capital fig 4 35(a) 43,861 42,269

Reserves 1 35(b) 30,730 83,024
TOTAL EQUITY B 74,591 125,293
On behalf of the Board REZEES

Kong Siu Tim
Lt
Director

EF

Wan Tze Fan Terence

potsal i
Director

EF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEEDZEER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 &; £2009F12A31H L F &
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA et &

Attributable to equity holders of the Company (note 35(c))
FATRERF AL (H&35(c))

Share  Convertible

Share Share Contributed option note equity  Exchange Capital Accumulated Minority Total
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
BRE TREZR PYRE
k% RbEE S9RE BE  REBE EREE  ERBE  RiBR 13 #h oS
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000
Tin TiEm Tin T#n Tin Tin Tin T#n Thn Fin Thn
Balance at 1 January 2008 12008173182
&5 42,249 364,389 81,043 18,589 - 18,466 - (263,887) 260,849 - 260,849
Total comprehensive income AEF2AKEAE
for the year - - - - N K - (oid8  (132797) -9
Capital contribution by a WEBRRZ ) &kE
minority equity holder REAZBRAEE
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 122 122
Shares issued under share  ZEEIREHEI% {72
option scheme
(note (35 B (B 2 21 - ) - - - - 378 . 378
Equity-settled share-based ~ RAEENRA X2
transactions (note 34(c)) 25 (HE34(c) - - - 3877 - - - - 3877 - 3877
At 31 December 2008 and  12008%12A31H &
at 1 January 2009 N00FIA1E 42260 364780 1043 22433 - g1 - (0403 132307 122 132429
Total comprehensive income ~ AEE2 ARALE
for the year - - - - - (16,092) - (18,784) (34,876) (141) (35,017)
Capital contrioution bya ~~ HERE 2D &kiE
minority equity holder FEAZBRATE
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 160 160
Share issued under share  REEIRIER BI% (T2
option scheme
(note 35(2() B (HEpsEi 68 7 - {3 - - - - 66m - 66m
Shares issued for REKEETRG
acquisitions (note 8(a)(if)  (zE35(a)(il) 724 26,087 - - - - - - 26,811 - 26,811
Issue of convertible note EIMEREE
(note 31) (RzEat) - = = - 9,489 - - - 9,489 - 9,489
Contribution from controling ~ ERBRIAE EER
equity holder in the form of ~ /3t fEiH 2 E 4
interest free loans (Ft3E35(0)) (vi)
(note 33(cvi) - - - - - - - 7,741 - 7,741
At31December2009  K2009E12B31E 43861 07978 81043 21132 9489 9725 7741 (422819 148150 W 148,291

ey

B AR 2A A e 2009 F #H

e R 42

— A3

B
—_



t—palgwn sbuip|oH ABJ1au3 sisauan e 50O 340day |enuuy

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ZRAERER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 &; £2009F 12 A31H L F &

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA# et &)

2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(&= 7)
Operating activities EEER
Loss before income tax expenses B A4 AT S 18
From continuing operations REFELEFER (32,940) (40,244)
From discontinued operations REERIEEEET 14,666 (97,074)
(18,274) (137,318)
Adjustments for: FEIEE :
Depreciation of property, M WEREETE
plant and equipment 9,365 16,126
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments METE R IBEE 155 306
Amortisation of intangible assets | EE#H 122 218
Imputed interest on convertible note Al AR IR 2 FEET A B 1,555 -
Interest income A2 WA (198) (743)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR (W )/J%?E (11,593) 87,531
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE KR ERDS
plant and equipment - (1,902)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AN EIRE 2 REEE
investments - 914
Impairment loss on prepaid lease HEBENFIE 2 RIEEE
payment - 2,417
Impairment loss on property, W WEREERESRE
plant and equipment - 8,337
Impairment loss on goodwill EESNERIEY T 4,000 -
Loss on fair value adjustment on JEWEB A FERHEEE
note receivable 1,000 -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sales HERH#EERE NS
investments (1,056) -
Equity-settled share-based payment RABFARND T T2 H
expenses - 3,877
Share of loss of a jointly controlled entity ~— FE{E HER3EES B A T E B 5,522 4,372
Excess of Group’s share of net fair value ~ £EE ARG 2
of the interests acquired over the FATFEESREBEA
cost of acquisition AR 2 F R (4,585) -
Operating loss before changes BESEEHH
in working capital HEEE (13,987) (15,865)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEgm R (485) 74
Decrease in trade and other receivables,  FEUWIRZK - HEWERR - HE& &
deposits and prepayments TE A SRIE R 1,518 59
(Decrease)/increase in other Hfh N HIE R ERE R
payables and accruals CRl2>) /18 (2,391) 4,408
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExgH o wE (171) (424)
Cash used in operations KELBRAZRE (15,516) (11,748)
Tax paid BT IE
PRC tax paid B8R A IR (963) (2,479)
Net cash used in operating activities (EZEEFHMAZIRERE (16,479) (14,227)



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
FEeRERER(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2009 &; 200912 A31H IF F &
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA# et &)
2009 2008
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B 5 FHETT F& T
(Restated)
(&£=75)
Investing activities "EEE
Payment for purchase of property, BAME  BWEK
plant and equipment BB (3,723) (21,046)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEWE - BE MRE
plant and equipment Fr{S3k38 - 3,471
Payment for purchase of intangible assets E%J\ﬁ%ﬁ/ﬁéﬁ K - (5,838)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits BEBFEROR AL (B ) 1,186 (1,263)
Disposal of subsidiaries, HEMNRB AR - kAT
net of cash disposed of HERE 36 (15,760) 1,500
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired WEE - MBRATREEIR € 37 (72,651) =
Interest received 2 U B 37 743
Payment for purchase of available-for-sale & A ] fit H & & & 13X
investments = (2,346)
Proceeds from sale of HEHEERE
available-for-sale investments Fr 1S 3038 2,487 -
Investment in a jointly controlled entity RERIZESEQF
ZIRE - (19,500)
Net cash used in investing activities KREFEFAZERETE (88,424) (44,279)
Financing activities B EE
Proceeds from convertible note issued BT MR RIS RIE 31 25,000 =
Proceeds from shares issued under BB BTG
share option scheme Fr S 7118 6,678 378
Contribution from minority interest RKELERRZEE 160 122
Advance from/(repayment to) a R R 22K (B
controlling equity holder 63,642 (33,114)
Advance from/(repayment to) a MEBARLEHRBRERE A
minority equity holder ZBR(BR)
of a subsidiary 378 (797)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RIEEEEL (FTA)Z
financing activities INEBHE 95,858 (33,411)
Net decrease in cash and HERREEED
cash equivalents BLFE (9,045) (91,917)
Cash and cash equivalents M1B1EZRE R
at 1 January HeZEEY 19,622 111,224
Effect of foreign exchange ExEgeszneE
rate changes (42) SHllS
Cash and cash equivalents ”12A318 ' BIIR& R
at 31 December, representing RITHEBRZHER
cash and bank balances RE%EEY 10,535 19,622

B AR 2A A e 2009 F #H
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt F5 3R Pt B

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA7E 7oat &)

GENERAL

Genesis Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in Bermuda on 2 November 1999 under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) and its shares were

1. —iR&#H
Bl RIERAR AR (AR AR
BERE-—NAN—FA8E (BFTA)
199G 11 A2 E B REFMA LA
XE#MeBMR AT - HARHMR2000F2 A4

listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong IOHREAEBAT S AR AT TR E

Kong Limited on 9 February 2000. The registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are located
at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda and Suite 3707-3708, West Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong,

respectively.

The Company’s parent is Hong Chang China Limited and

plo=]
Mo ARFAZAMPEERFEE LM
2k 5 B A Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda® &
& T # 8 P 168-2005% 5 12 7 /0 70 BB
3707-3708F °

ARABZBRRBEEREBRAR

the directors’ consider the ultimate parent to be Hong EEAAERS AT AEEEEAR A

Chang Group Limited, both companies were incorporated in

the British Virgin Islands.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 22.

7 MR FH R B E X RS A

Kt

ARAB—FREZERAT  MEHNEB
REZ EBEEEH N E22

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL o, R4y E & IiFEiRE 20| ([ 5

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

AR EER )

(@) The Group has adopted the following new/revised (a) NEEBDEMNUTESSIMAS

HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) that are effective for

the current accounting period.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

FRMBHRE LA (BFTA)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

BREMBHRELER (EFIA)

HKAS 1 (Revised)

BB ERIE15 (KIEF])
HKAS 23 (Revised)

BRE G LR F235 (KEET)
HKAS 32 and 1 (Amendments)

BB G EREI25E R E1H (BFTAR)

(TBEESFMAE]) Bk NA
BT MMM IR EETER
MR EEL -

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2008, except for the
amendment to HKFRS 5 that is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1July 2009

2008F M 2 T B MM E LR 22K - R2009F7 1B 3L
2R FERRER 2 BB M B RELERESHRERT
NG

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009 in relation to the
amendment to paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

2009 MM BENBHRELR ZBCE - HEBEEE
R 3958 80 Z (B F]

Presentation of Financial Statements

MBE/REZEZR

Borrowing Costs

fEERA

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising
on Liquidation

hESRTARSRELAZEME



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt F5 3R Pt 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JAE Joat &)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

(@) The Group has adopted the following new/revised
HKFRSs issued by HKICPA that are effective for the
current accounting period. (Continued)

ENEEMBREEAN(E
B BREEL] 2

(@ AEECDRBUATEESANAE
PR AN & FT B A 2 R
RIEFTBEMBREER - (&)

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 (Amendments) Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate
BEMBGHREENF 1R RBESGEL MEAR  HEEESEQRKBERFZ
L2757 (85T A) RE KA
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
BRI B REERI 25 (BETA) 55 B IR s 3R
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
BEBMBREENETI (BFTA) SR T HEEEE 2 BUE
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
V8 B 75 i 5 22 BI 2 85% BE D

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 and HKAS 39 (Amendments) Embedded derivatives

FE(ARMBERERBERE®) -R2EBFR RAATLETA
KEE G ERIFEI9E (BFTA)

HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
EE(ERVBRERERZE S =P EHEE

—REF13HR
HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
EE(ERVBRERERZE S P ¥ 72E 32 585 177 %

—REF155
HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
EE(ERVBREREZE S HiPBIINEBIREFR

—REF165
HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
EE(ERVBRERERZE S EEEFZEE

—REF18%

The adoption of the above new/revised HKFRSs had no
material effect on the reported results or financial position of
the Group for both the current and prior reporting periods,
except for the following changes. Comparative figures have
been restated or included in these financial statements in
order to achieve a consistent presentation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt F5 3R Pt B

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA7E 7oat &)

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised), Presentation of Financial Statements —
The revised standard affects certain disclosures of financial
statements. Under the revised standard, the Income
Statement, the Balance Sheet and the Cash Flow Statement
are renamed as the “Statement of Comprehensive Income”,
the “Statement of Financial Position” and the “Statement of
Cash Flows” respectively. All income and expenses arising
from transaction with non-owners are presented under the
“Statement of Comprehensive Income”; while the owners’
changes in equity are presented in the “Statement of
Changes in Equity”.

HKFRS 8, Operating Segments — HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS
14 “Segment Reporting”, and requires operating segments
to be identified on the basis of internal reports of the Group
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision-
maker in order to allocate resources to the segments and
to assess their performance. As the business segments
reported by the Group in accordance with the requirements
of HKAS 14 are the same as the operating segments
provided to the chief operating decision-maker as required
by HKFRS 8, there are no changes to the operating
segments and the relevant segment information on the
adoption of HKFRS 8.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures
relating to fair value measurements for financial instruments
that are measured at fair value and liquidity risk of financial
liabilities. The Group has not provided comparative
information for the expanded disclosures in accordance with
the transitional provision.

2.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA 7Tat &) ‘-“‘\ .
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FPNEEAEUBREELN(E

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) HIBIREER ) &)
(Continued)
(b) Potential impact arising on HKFRSs not yet (b) BIREMZEEUBEREEL
effective TREERZRE
The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant REBHARIEEREWNATEEBMAER KR
to the Group’s operations, have been issued but are not yet R RSB RT BB I S 2R -
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group. BEBERTREEAEE 2 & &R -
HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of Improvements to HKFRSs!
BB B EER (BT A) ERUBREEDNSE 2 —BD — BT BEMBHRELR
EA
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009, except for amendments to
HKFRS 52
BBMBHmEER (BRI A) 2009F BB W 15 M & B 2 BUE - BRI S 2RI E555
CHENCEN
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment — Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions®
BRI B REERIFE25 (BEFTA) BANR-—EEURS&EE 2RO MR 5
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements!
BB EAFE27R (KIEET) fRE RSB EwmER
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations'’
BB USRI E3 (KEET) E%E pH
HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners'’
A6 (BRVBMERELZER) - ZBE1TR RMEBADKIEREEE
HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments*
E5 (BRVBHREREREZEY)-—2BFE19% URATAEKEe/RE R
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures®
BB 2R E245% (K(EE]) B A TR e
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
BB EERIFE R ©ph T A
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 g 200957 A1H 3k 2 1% R s 2 F /€ &
£
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 2 720097 A1 8 Kk2010F1 18 (8 F
and 1 January 2010, as appropriate. EEBAME) k2 &FRRzFE IR
AR o
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January g MR2010F1A1A sk 2 4 s 2 FEH
2010 A& 2
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 4 MR2010F7A1H sk 2 % R s 2 F /5 &
AR
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 8 M2011F1 1B sk 2 & R s 2 F 5 &
2011 il 4 &K
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January & MR2013F1A1A Sk 2 4 s 2 FEH
2013 A& 2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt F5 3R Pt B

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA7E 7oat &)

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)
(b) Potential impact arising on HKFRSs not yet
effective (Continued)
The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s
accounting for business combinations for which the
acquisition dates are on or after 1 January 2010. HKAS 27
(Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for changes
in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary. Changes
in the Group’s ownership interest that do not result in loss
of control of the subsidiary will be accounted for as equity
transactions.

The amendment to HKAS 17 made under “Improvements
to HKFRSs 2009”, mandatory for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010, removes the specific
guidance which stated that land held under a lease should
be classified as an operating lease unless title to the
land is expected to pass at the end of the lease term. It
provides new guidance which indicates that entity should
use judgement to decide whether the lease transfers the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the land in
accordance with the criteria set out in HKAS 17. The Group
will reassess the classification of land elements of unexpired
leases at the date it adopts the amendment on the basis
of information existed at the inception of the lease and
retrospectively recognise the lease as a finance lease if the
criteria of a finance lease is met.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of other new/revised HKFRSs and the
directors so far concluded that the application of the other
new/revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.

2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt F5 3R Pt 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JAE Joat &)

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
financial statements comply with the applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention as modified by the inclusion of
certain financial instruments at fair value.

(c) Functional and presentational currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise of the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”).
between group companies are eliminated in full in preparing

Inter-company transactions and balances

the consolidated financial statements.

On acquisition, the assets and liabilities of the relevant
subsidiaries are measured at their fair values at the date
of acquisition. The interests of minority equity holders are
stated at the minority’s proportion of the fair values of the
assets and liabilities recognised.

The results of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective dates of
acquisition or to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt F5 3R Pt B

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA7E 7oat &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and
net assets of subsidiaries attributable to equity interests
that are not owned directly or indirectly through subsidiaries
by the Company. Minority interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the equity holders of
the Company. Minority interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss for the year between minority interests and the owners
of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess,
and any further losses applicable to the minority, are
charged against the Group’s interest except to the extent
that the minority has a binding obligation to, and is able
to, make additional investment to cover the losses. If
the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group’s
interest is allocated all such profits until the minority’s share
of losses previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered.

(b) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company is able to
exercise control. Control is achieved where the Company,
directly or indirectly, has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting
rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt F5 3R Pt 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JAE Joat &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Business combinations

Acquisition of subsidiaries and businesses is accounted for
using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of
exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed,
and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable
to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are recognised at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 4(d) below.

The interest of minority equity holders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net
fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised and is subsequently measured in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in Note 4(a) above.

(d) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination over the interest in the fair value of identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired. Cost
comprises the fair values of assets given, liabilities assumed
and equity instruments issued, plus any direct costs of
acquisition.

Goodwill is capitalised as a separate asset with any
impairment in carrying amount being recognised in profit or
loss.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration
paid, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA7E 7oat &)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Goodwill (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount to each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

(e) Jointly controlled entity

A jointly controlled entity is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity which is subject to joint control and none
of the participating parties has unilateral control over the
economic activity.

Jointly controlled entities are accounted for using equity
method whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the jointly
controlled entities’ net assets except that losses in excess
of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entities are
not recognised unless there is an obligation to make good
those losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FEFHBER @)
(Continued)
(e) Jointly controlled entity (Continued) (e) HEEZEESEAT (#) b

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly controlled entities are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly
controlled entities, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case they are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

The Company’s interests in jointly controlled entities are
stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. Results of
jointly controlled entities are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

(f) Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

= buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the buildings
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease; and

- other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt F5 3R Pt B

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA7E 7oat &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at each
reporting date, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

- buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and
their estimated useful lives of not more than 50 years
after the date of completion.

- leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of their estimated useful lives or the lease term.

- natural gas pipeline network and ancillary facilities are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of
the joint venture enterprise and their estimated useful

lives.
= refilling stations 10 years
= oil and gas properties 10 — 14 years
= furniture, fixtures and
office equipment 5 — 7 years
- motor vehicles 5 - 8 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JAE Joat &)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(9) Intangible assets

Oil exploitation rights

QOil exploitation rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses and are amortised
on the units of production method utilising only proven and
probable oil reserves in the depletion base.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets comprise costs which are
directly attributable to: researching and analysing existing
exploration data; conducting geological studies, exploratory
drilling and sampling; examining and testing extraction
and treatment methods; and compiling pre-feasibility and
feasibility studies. Exploration and evaluation assets also
include the payment to acquire the rights to explore, the
entry premiums paid to gain access to areas of interest
and amounts payable to third parties to acquire interests in
existing projects. Assets used in exploration and evaluation
activities are classified as oil and gas properties within
property, plant and equipment.

During the initial stage of a project, exploration and
evaluation costs are expensed as incurred. Expenditure
on a project after it has reached a stage at which there is
a high degree of confidence in its viability is capitalised as
exploration and evaluation assets and not amortised, and
transferred to oil exploitation rights if the project proceeds.
If a project does not prove viable, all irrecoverable costs
associated with the project are expensed in profit or loss.
Exploration and evaluation assets are stated at cost less
impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt F5 3R Pt B

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA7E 7oat &)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(h) Leases

(i)

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.

Financial instruments

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value
and all other financial assets are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale
of a financial asset under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt F5 3R Pt 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JAE Joat &)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise principally through
the provision of goods and services to customers
(trade debtors), and also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that
are designated as available for sale or are not included
in other categories of financial assets. Subsequent to
initial recognition, these assets are carried at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised directly in equity.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt F5 3R Pt B

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA7E 7oat &)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is impaired if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and that event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

° granting concession to a debtor because of
debtors’ financial difficulty;

° it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of financial asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When any part of financial asset is
determined as uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for the relevant financial asset.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount
can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt F5 3R Pt 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JAE Joat &)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective
evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or loss
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase
in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried
at cost, the amount of impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss shall
not be reversed.

(iii)  Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value and financial liabilities at
amortised costs are initially measured at fair value, net
of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, the debt element of
convertible debt issued by the Group are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt F5 3R Pt B

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA7E 7oat &)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
(iv) Convertible notes containing liability and
equity components

Convertible notes issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into their respective items
on initial recognition. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an
equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the proceeds of the issue of the convertible
notes and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option for the
holder to convert the notes into equity, is included in
equity (convertible notes equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible notes equity reserve until the
conversion option is exercised (in which case the
balance stated in convertible notes equity reserve
will be transferred to share premium. Where the
option remains unexercised at the expiry dates, the
balance stated in convertible notes equity reserve will
be released to accumulated losses. No gain or loss
is recognised upon conversion or expiration of the
option.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt F5 3R Pt 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JAE Joat &)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)
(v) Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

(vi) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

() Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 55 4R R B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA7 7oat &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

() Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Provision for future decommissioning and restoration
is recognised in full on the installation of oil and gas
properties. The amount recognised is the present value of
the estimated future expenditure determined in accordance
with local conditions and requirements. A corresponding
addition to the related oil and gas properties of an
amount equivalent to the provision is also created. This is
subsequently depreciated as part of the costs of the oil
and gas properties. Any change in the present value of the
estimated expenditure other than due to passage of time
which is regarded as interest expense, is reflected as an
adjustment to the provision and oil gas properties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then
be recognised as a provision.

(m) Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A1 F5 ik 3R Pt B

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA Joat &)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items directly recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
directly recognised in other comprehensive income.

(n) Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it operates (the “functional currency”)
are recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions
occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities
are translated at the rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEGFHK#)

(Continued)

(n) Foreign currencies (Continued)

On consolidation, the results of foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.,e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the rates approximating
to those ruling when the transactions took place are used.
All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated
at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising on translating the opening net assets
at opening rate and the results of foreign operations at
actual rate are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated as exchange reserve. Exchange
differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities’
separate financial statements on the translation of long-term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net investment
in the foreign operation concerned are reclassified to
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in exchange reserve relating to that
operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit
or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in exchange
reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A1 F5 ik 3R Pt B

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA Joat &)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(0) Employees’ benefits (o) EEw®FI

4. FEGFHK#)
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(o))
(o))

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant
date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on
the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss over the remaining vesting period,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
other parties are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where the fair value
cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted, measured at the date the Group obtains the
goods or the counterparty renders the service.

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability
equal to the portion of the goods or services received
is recognised at the current fair value determined at
the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %5 i 3R Pt 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JAE 7oat &)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(o) Employees’ benefits (Continued)
(iii)  Retirement benefits scheme
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Scheme. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
contributions as employer vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the Scheme.

The Group has joined a mandatory central pension
scheme organised by the PRC government for
certain of its employees, the assets of which are held
separately from those of the Group. Contributions
made are based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they became payable, in accordance with the rules
of the scheme. The employer’s contributions vest fully
once they are made.

(p) Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

o property, plant and equipment under cost model;

o interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating lease; and

o investments in subsidiaries, and jointly controlled
entity.

4. FEGFHK#)

(o) EBEEH (&)

(i) BIKEFIE 2
AEBREBERHNERTE S EKF
B SEEEMERERLERM
R ERTESRINEAEE ([5
&)  HRDANEEZEAF
BOLEL - WARBZETEZH A
REMNEERDmBRAMER ° &t 8l
ZEEDEFRR—EBIER 2 E
R BAKRBZEEDFHRIH
BEASERZEHERR  RBEA
RE2ZHEEMK -

AEBERETEEZ2MATEK
&I 2 R Bl RAR RS AT E -
AEIEEEASEEEDFRES °
HRTUNEEREEZHEBAOL
fEH - WARER ST 81 2 AR R B B
R RAER o B E /KR EL
HRESN2HFEREE -

() HtvEEZRE

REeEREHEERK  ~AEEEHT
JIEBEZREE  KHBEEE TP
KRB TREEENRMEREE Sk
R BEBRS TMFEXEFRL

o RABEATZWE  BER&E:

B AR 2A A e 2009 F #H

T
=

Bl %7 B2 IR 4

o __
~

e



— paywi] sbuipjoH ABJaug sISBUSD e 00 M0daY |enuuy

(¢)]
(00]

Notes to the Financial Statements

A1 F5 ik 3R Pt B

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA Joat &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another HKFRS, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under
that other HKFRS.

(q) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

(r) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %5 i 3R Pt 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JAE 7oat &)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(r) Discontinued operations (Continued)
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon

disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be

classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs when the

operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single

amount is presented on the face of the statement of

comprehensive income, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued

operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the

measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the

disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s) constituting

the discontinued operation.

(s) Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A1 F5 ik 3R Pt B

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA Joat &)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Related parties (Continued)

(v) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

(v the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

t)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances and
exclude value added tax or other sales related taxes.

(i) Sale of crude oil

Revenue is recognised when crude oil is delivered
at the customers’ premises which is taken to be the
point in time when the customer has accepted the
crude oil delivered and the related risks and rewards of
ownership.

(i)~ Sale of natural gas

Revenue from sale of liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”)
and natural gas in refilling stations is recognised upon
completion of the gas filling transactions.

(i) Rental/pipeline leasing income from operating
leases

Rental/pipeline leasing income receivable under
operating leases is recognised in income statement
in equal instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %5 i 3R Pt 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JAE 7oat &)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(t) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iv) Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time-apportioned
basis by reference to the principal outstanding using

the effective interest method.

5. TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are operation of oil
exploitation and sale of crude oil. The activities relating
to the operation of refilling stations supplying natural gas
and LPG for vehicle use and sale of LPG in cylinders were
discontinued during the year as a result of the disposal of

Excellent Century Limited and its subsidiaries (note 12).

The amount of each significant category of revenue

recognised in turnover during the year was as follows:
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HMBAR ARAKEHEIERARA
AR B R 2 4 AR kI 8 6 AR
EBEBRZEBCRFERR LS (M
E12) o

FANELEBRERZEAETEREHT
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2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FHET
(restated)
(#eE5)
Continuing operations FEEEET
Sale of crude oil 5 & R 15,155 4,206
15,155 4,206
Discontinued operations (note 12) B IE&EEEE (HE12)
Natural gas and LPG RARKBILAHER
- sale of natural gas and —TEHAR UL SHE RAR &
LPG at refilling stations BAEERR 19,279 35,858
Pipeline leasing income EBEERA - 2,674
19,279 38,532
34,434 42,738
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A1 F5 ik 3R Pt B

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA Joat &)

6. OTHER REVENUE

6. HtlrA

2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET F& T
(restated)
(&e=E=7)
Continuing operations HESEER

Interest income on bank deposits HRITERFE A 193 675
Rental income e WA 583 407
Compensation (note) B E (5F) 1,481 =
Others HAth 26 51
2,283 1,133

Discontinued operations (note 12) B#RIE&EEETE (H£12)
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF KA BUA 5 68
Others HAth - 9
5 77
2,288 1,210

Note: During the year, the Group received compensation of
HK$4,443,000 (2008: HK$NIl) from an operating consultant
for causing a technical fault in the production of crude oil
which resulted in less crude oil being produced from the
Liuluoyu oil field since it was acquired by the Group. The
fault was only temporary and production has now been
resumed to the normal level. The Group expects it will take
approximately up to 36 months to make up the loss in
production caused by the fault. Accordingly, the directors
are of the opinion that it would be appropriate to recognise
the compensation received as other income over a period of
three years from February 2009. Accordingly, HK$1,481,000
(2008: HK$NIl) has been recognised during the year as other

revenue.

2 FR AKER - EEEERESREE
4,443,000/ 7T (20084 : &) - AR B
7N 52 [ 45 5 0O W el R DA 2R L JROH AR
ERMARERERE TR - FHX
RACHEMESEEKEEERKYE -
ANEEETE BT E K36 A ARAEE
MRRIEHREEB TR ZEX - Bt
EEmE R A RBN2009F2H 7 4A A3
FHRACKRDZEBEESEMBEAR
BES - At RAFEEBRZHAM
W A %&1,481,00078 7T (20084F : #&) °



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %5 i 3R Pt 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JAE 7oat &)

7. OTHER GAINS AND (LOSSES), NET Hiprzz & (B518) F 8
2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET
(restated)
(#eE5)
Continuing operations BECEET
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AJft HE&RE 2
investments B EE = (914)
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 20) 74 7 & {E &8 (Ff5£20) (4,000) -
Fair value loss on note receivable JEWEE 2 A FEEE
(note 27) (M 5E27) (1,000) -
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE BMEEXEZ
plant and equipment 518 = (88)
Exchange gains, net P& 5 Uk 5 58 408 645
Excess of the Group’s share of net &£ B AR FT1H 2
fair value of interests FRAFEEESREA
acquired over the cost of acquisition  BX 7K 2 JF &8
(note 37(b)) (P 5£37(b)) 4,585 =
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale Hi & Al i £ % & 7 Wz
investments (note 23) (Pt 5£23) 1,056 -
1,049 (357)
Discontinued operations (note 12) B IE&EEEE (HE12)
Gain on disposal of property, LEWE BEEXEZ
plant and equipment W g - 1,990
Impairment loss on prepaid lease HEEMNFIB 2 REEE
payments (note 18) (PfF5E18) - (2,417)
Impairment loss on property, Y% BEREZEZ
plant and equipment (note 17) BB EE (MIEE17) - (8,337)
Exchange losses, net b A B 1B F R - (446)
- (9,210)
1,049 (9,567)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A1 F5 ik 3R Pt B

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA Joat &)

8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSES 8.

Loss before income tax expenses is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

B Bt RIS 18
BB ISR NG, GEA) :

2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TFHET FHET
(restated)
(&= 5)
(a) Finance costs (a) RABERE
Continuing operations FHEEEET
Imputed interest on ARRRE
convertible note (note 31) FEET T S (FH5ES1) 1,555 =
Interest on borrowing AR —FANEE
repayable within K fEEF B
one year 212 -
1,767 -
(b) Staff costs (including (b) BImAF
directors’ remuneration (BIEMEF10Z2EEZHE)
in note 10)
Continuing operations FEEEET
Salaries, wages and other e ILENK
benefits H Ao & A 10,612 10,497
Equity-settled share-based AR A5 B LA ) 2 72
payment expenses X i (B 5E34(c))
(note 34(c)) - 3,877
Contributions to defined TE R SR IRNETEl 2
contribution retirement plan T3 169 172
10,781 14,546
Discontinued operations ERIEEEER
(note 12) (FFzE12)
Salaries, wages and other He- 18K
benefits Hith 18 A 599 1,146
Contributions to defined ERBBGRIKETE 2
contribution retirement plan R - 15
599 1,161
11,380 15,707
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Notes to the Financial Statements B,
B %5 8k R Bff 5 -
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA 7Tat &) ‘-“‘\ .
N
8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSES 8. BPimEsia &)
(Continued)
Loss before income tax expenses is arrived at after BRBEEEENG S (GTA) : (&) e,
charging/(crediting) (continued): .
2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TER FHET
(restated)
(&E35)
(c) Other items (c) HMIEH
Continuing operations FEEEET
Auditors’ remuneration Z 2D B
— current year —AKFE 913 686
— overprovision in prior year — L FEBEEE = (10)
Depreciation of property, Y BE &
plant and equipment HETE
(note 17) (FF=E17) 7,741 3,707
Amortisation of intangible BB B HE R
assets * (note 19) (F$sE19) 122 218
Operating lease charges KEHERX
minimum lease payments =IEHEEFKIE
— property rentals —MEEE 2,527 3,022
Provision for assets retirement & & % & R E (G
obligations (note 30) (F$E30) - 338
Discontinued operations ERIEEEER
(note 12) (FFzE12)
Cost of inventories FEKA 9,717 18,605
Auditors’ remuneration Z 2D B 62 56
Depreciation of property, Y - BER
plant and equipment RIEITE
(note 17) (P 5E17)
— assets held for use under —REEHERFIEERZ i
operating leases BE - 9,221 s
— other assets —HMEE 1,624 3,198 §
Amortisation of prepaid lease 70 & 81+ ZUIE B §5 o
payment (note 18) (fF5E18) 155 306 T
é
G Included in “direct costs” as disclosed in the & FAGEEERERC [BEEX i
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. K] o E'Dﬁ
P
i\%ﬁi
&
|

~
(92}

i



— paywi] sbuipjoH ABJaug sISBUSD e 00 M0daY |enuuy

~
(o)}

Notes to the Financial Statements

A1 F5 ik 3R Pt B

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA Joat &)

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

(i)

(i

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the group companies comprising the continuing
operations did not have any estimated assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong profits tax during the
years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008. The
subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to statutory tax
rate of 25%. During the years ended 31 December
2009 and 2008, the PRC subsidiaries have no
assessable income subject to PRC income tax. The
subsidiaries in the United States are subject to a tax
rate of 34%. These subsidiaries incurred losses for tax
purpose during the years ended 31 December 2009
and 2008.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
loss at applicable tax rates:

P 5 i 32

(0

(ii

#H 220094 &2008%12 A31H 1
FEAN HRESERELEEBZ
EERARNBAMRNESNER 2
HEERTURT - I EETHIRE B
FISHEE UNFEZHERF
15 TE B R 25%H AT IE - 7R2009
& N2008F12H31H EFE A -
EHEFTBE KB AR EFBAT
SR EERTRAUIA o fZ A KB 2 K
B R RIE T EI4% M MFLTE - F
2 [ B A &) ’A20094F 2008412
AR LEFERNEETIEERE -

BERREAEZRB R Eat
BIREERIT ¢

2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FHET
(restated)
(#eE5)
Loss before income tax BRI &R
expenses (32,940) (40,244)
Notional tax on loss before REAMERGEL
taxation, calculated at RTAIEEER
the applicable tax rates 18 (8,270) (11,752)
Tax effect of non-deductible A HIBR Z 2
expenses N 6,526 8,043
Tax effect of non-taxable income 78R U A 2 Fi 15 & (3,962) (1,126)
Utilisation of tax losses &) R 5% B AR FE 7R 7 18 /5 18
previously not recognised (54) —
Tax effect of tax losses not RIERTHIEEE 2
recognised B2 5,760 4,835
Actual income tax expense ERHEE I H - =
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Notes to the Financial Statements LT
B4 %5 $k R B} 5 -
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA 7Tat &) "-a ﬁ'r\.
10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. EEM£
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 BERBSATIKIEIIERECES
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: BT - | -
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement Share-
Directors’ benefits scheme based 2009
fees in kind contributions Sub-total  payments Total
(note)
TR 3 Bk Wi 3 20094
EEHe REYHEZ  TEHX It ZRE aE
(Pt aE)

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$ 000
F#ET F#T F#ET F#T TR F#T

Executive directors BTES
Xing Xiao Jing? MR - 345 3 348 - 348
Ma Ji S - 42 - 42 - 42
Kong Siu Tim ILAH - 1,118 12 1,130 - 1,130
Jiang Ri Zhong ZAA - 511 - 511 - 511
Wan Tze Fan Terence BTE - 812 10 822 - 822
- 2,828 25 2,853 - 2,853
Independent BILEBITEE
non-executive directors
Yip Ching Shan 3 144 - - 144 - 144
Ni Zhenwei iR (E 144 - - 144 - 144
Wong Kwok Chuen =E 2 144 - - 144 - 144
432 - - 432 - 432
432 2,828 25 3,285 - 3,285 5
T ——— H_
(o))
o
o
N
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*  Resigned on 3 March 2009 * 200943 A3H B |
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A1 F5 ik 3R Pt B

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA Joat &)

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Salaries,

allowances

and

Directors’ benefits
fees in kind

A
Exhe RENNS
HK$'000  HK$'000

10. EENE »)

Retirement Share-
scheme based 2008
contributions Sub-total payments Total
(note)
AR A 2 5t
R LA 2008%F
AT EIE R Nt (B zE) s

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000

THT THL THT T THT THL
Executive directors BTES

Xing Xiao Jing* TPEE &t = 1,593 12 1,605 430 2,035
Ma Ji* 5B = 260 - 260 - 260
Kong Siu Tim LD - 1,118 12 1,130 361 1,491
- 2,971 24 2,995 791 3,786

Independent BILEBITEE

non-executive directors

Yip Ching Shan =l 144 - - 144 92 236
Ni Zhenwei iR (E 144 - - 144 92 236
Wong Kwok Chuen HE2 144 = = 144 92 236
432 - - 432 276 708
432 2,971 24 3,427 1,067 4,494

During the year, no emoluments (2008: HK$Nil) were paid
by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss
of office. None of the directors waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2009
and 2008.

Note: These represented the estimated value of share options
granted to the directors under the Company’s share option
scheme. The value of these share options was measured
according to the Group’s accounting policy for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 4(o)(ii) and, in
accordance with that policy, included adjustments to reverse
amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity
instruments were forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of the Company’s share option scheme, including
the principal terms and number of options granted, are

disclosed in the directors’ report and note 34.

# Resigned on 3 March 2009

FRAEBTERTNESINHE
(20084 : ) EAKEEMA KR IMAR
SERZRESIEABBRZEE -HE
20094 M2008F 12 A31H ILFE © i &
EENEXRERETAHE -

PR« PARR DD 2 2 FOIRIE R IR A X A B AR
HAERTES2BREZGHFEE-
1Lk 25 i B 2 (B (8 79 AR 18 B 54 (o) (i) AT
HUBRN XN 2R 2 A EE SR
Rt B MBBEZBR  BREZ(EE
I /B 15 R 5R B B OR Wz P R AR AR
TEAEBEFREREFZRESE A -

AARIBEREZ F15 (BEMELEBR
BZEEBRAERBE)EREZTSRE
K sE34H B -

& 20093 A3 H B (L
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11. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 11. R§#&H AT

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
three (2008: two) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the disclosure in note 10. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2008: three) individuals
are as follows:

57 & = ¥ A & - 31 (20084 : 2fiL)
RARNRZESE A€ B EM 108
7= o H 8221 (20084F : 3fi7) & = #r A
S BENT

2009 2008

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

F#ET FABT

(restated)

(&&E5)

Salaries and other emoluments FekEMME 1,492 2,055
Share-based payments VARR 2 32+ 2 5/ 38 - 1,189
Retirement scheme contributions RARETEI 30 - 19
1,492 3,263

The emoluments of the two (2008: three) non-director
individuals with the highest emoluments are within the
following bands:

2fiL(20084F : 3fi) IFEE AL
TR EE -

o
Z o
b
> N

Z

Szl

i

2009 2008

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE A

Below HK$1,000,000 1,000,000/ 7T A N 2 1
HK$1,000,000 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,000/% 7t — 1,500,000/ 7T - 2
2 3

During the year, no emoluments (2008: HK$Nil) were paid
by the Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office.

N B R F RBEE S S EA B < (2008
F o E) FEMNEEFAL EAK
EMASRIMAREBE S 2 BESKIES

BEBL 2 fME -

B AR 2A A e 2009 F #H

oo
=

Bl %7 B2 IR 4

N
(Yo}
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 11 May 2009, the Group entered into a sale agreement
to dispose of Excellent Century Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Excellent Group”) which was engaged in sale of natural gas
and LPG at refilling stations to an independent third party
for a consideration of HK$21,000,000. The disposal was
effected to streamline the non-core business. The disposal
was completed on 8 July 2009, the date on which the
control of the Excellent Group was passed to the acquirer.

On 18 December 2008, the Group completed the
disposal of its natural gas pipeline network business
to an independent third party for a consideration of
HK$15,000,000 through disposal of the subsidiary, namely
Statemoon Limited (“Statemoon”).

The profit/(loss) for the period from the discontinued
operations is analysed as follows:

12. ERIEEERE

2009F5811H  "EEFTZ—HHE
19 5% 1 {8 421,000,000 JT (& 12 1E tt
KAERARIREMBRAR (RESHE])
B EBUE=E REEENENE
MU ERAR L BIEAME - ZHEH
CERBEHEZRLER - ZEHER
200947 H8H 5E /X + BN B IE & & 2 15 5l
HEETWHET 2BH-

MR2008F12H18H + A& BiFE B & K
BRREBmARRA R ([BW]) 7K B
VEZEXERARBTEMZEL K
{& /215,000,000 7T °

HAERIEKEEBZBHN, (BE) D
o

2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHT
(restated)
(= 7)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of Excellent ~ H&EREERE EHiHm 2
Group/Statemoon (note 36) Wzs, (E518) (M 5£36) 11,593 (87,531)
Profit/(loss) for the period on Ml (BE)
- Natural gas pipeline network —RAREERE - (3,898)
— Sale of natural gas and LPG — BRI HERAR R
at refilling stations BAL A AR 2,422 (8,475)
14,015 (99,904)
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 12. ERIEEEXER »)
(@ The results of the discontinued operations are as (@ BRIEKEEH 2 FEBZMOT :
follows: e,
2009 2008
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bt 5 THERT FAT
(Restated)
(&)
Turnover X 5&16 19,279 38,532
Cost of sales and services 55 & AR 75 AR AR (11,462) (31,294)
Gross profit E 7 7,817 7,238
Other revenue H A g A 6 5 77
Other losses, net H b G518 558 7 - (9,210)
Selling expenses HERX (3,693) (5,752)
Administrative expenses TERER (1,056) (1,896)
Profit/(loss) before income tax B FipIdzs, (E518)
expenses 3,073 (9,543)
Income tax expenses P8 H (651) (2,830)
Profit/(loss) for the period Ml (BE) 2,422 (12,373)
(o) The cash flows of the discontinued operations are as b) BERIEKLEBKZBEESREWT
follows:
2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TER TAT
(Restated)
(mE7) i
H_
. 3
Net cash inflow from KEERFEE 2R S F8E 2
operating activities 17,246 8,787 °
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from & &EE) (FTH) /FEL ,E
investing activities 2R FHE (310) 2,457 m
Net cash outflow from REFDFAZRSFE by
financing activities (13,230) (1,337) 24
ki
Net increase in cash ReRReEEBYIGINFE R
and cash equivalents 3,706 9,907 @

co __
—_

i
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12.

13.

14.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities
of Excellent Group and Statemoon at the dates of
disposal are disclosed in note 36.

A gain of HK$11,593,000 arose on the disposal of
subsidiaries (2008: loss on disposal of Statemoon of
HK$87,531,000), being the disposal proceeds less the
carrying amount of the subsidiaries’ net assets. No tax
charge or credit arose from the disposal.

(c) For the purpose of presenting discontinued operations,
the comparatives in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of cash flows and related notes to the financial
statements have been re-presented as if the operations
discontinued during the year had been discontinued at
the beginning of the comparative period.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company includes a loss of HK$7,882,000 (2008: loss of
HK$13,062,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008:
HK$SNIl).

12.

13.

14.

BRITEEERE »)

b) (4&)
REEEREEALEDRY 8E
REE EEENHE6HE -

o 6 B B A | &= A & F111,593,000
7T (20084 : HE M < BB
87,531,000/ jT) + Bl i & FT 15 3K
BRMERAREEFEZKREE -
ZELEWEEE ARSI HK
Hk o

) BERLEEEXRHZ2IME A
HuBzGEesHKER  Ge8
ERERNMEBMBERRMED
EFMEY BMFEARADRIELEE
BRUERBEFRF DR ERE -

FABIRERAAEBIEEBE

AREREFEEARGGEEBEESER
B AR BB 15 R 3k 2 5 187,882,000
JC (20084 : E51813,062,000/8 JT) °

k2
EEWNERIRKEEHE2009F12H31H
IEFE ZER IS (20084 : ) o
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15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based

on the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$18,784,000 (2008: HK$140,148,000) and the weighted
average number of 4,360,388,000 ordinary shares (2008:
4,226,179,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year,

calculated as follows:

()  (Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the

e
"‘i"‘i:
"5__ E
15. B &R (&E)
(a) SREXEFH (FE)
FRERRBARN (EE) TR E AR RQ GK ;

5B AL ET1E18,784,000/8 7T (2008
F : 140,148,000 L) ' A R FRE %
17E 38 0% 2 hn4E 15 £04,360,388,0000%
L E A% (20084 : 4,226,179,0000% & 3@
BROETE - FXWT :

() ARFAREREAEN (&

Company B) - EF
2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT FH T
(restated)
(&=751))
Continuing operations 5B AT FE T (32,799) (40,244)
Discontinued operations BRI TS 14,015 (99,904)
(18,784) (140,148)
(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (i) EERINE-FE B
2009 2008
’000 "000
Tz T B
Issued ordinary shares at M1A1BE %17
1 January TR 4,226,884 4,224,884
Effect of shares issued for RIFW BTN 2
acquisition (note 35(a)(iii)) 522 ([t 5E35(a)(ii)) 63,133 -
Effect of share options BEITEERECTE
exercised (note 35(a)(ii) (Bt 5£35(a)(ii)) 70,371 1,295
Weighted average number of M12A318 2 @R
ordinary shares at 31 December  JN4E 15 £ 4,360,388 4,226,179

(b) Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December

2009 and 2008 is not presented

as the Company’s

outstanding share options and convertible note during the

years had an anti-dilutive effect on the

basic loss per share.

(b) WBRHEBE

B E20094F 200812 H31H ILFE -
HRARARNZEFERRTEZER
BEABMBEREZBRERBBRBRR
BEYE BUBRIZETFEERHE
SEEE -

B AR 2A A e 2009 F #H

T
=

Bl %7 B2 IR 4

Co__
w

i
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16. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that

are used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has two (2008: three) reportable segments.
The segments are managed separately as each business
offers different products and services and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes the

operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

Continuing operations
Oil exploitation:

Discontinued operations
Natural gas and LPG:

for vehicle use and sale of
LPG in cylinders
Operation of natural Leasing of the natural gas

gas pipeline network: pipeline network

There are no sales or trading transactions between the
business segments. Central revenue and expenses are
not allocated to the operating segments as they are not
included in the measurement of the segments’ result used
by the chief operating decision-maker in the assessment of

segment performance.

Exploitation and sale of crude oil

Operation of gas refilling stations
supplying natural gas and LPG

16. D EPIRE

AEBERTBLERAREEMNLAAE
HEREE MR R c EBEELLEDE -

REBE R M E (20084F : =1f&) AT &
DEB e AR & B EHRE TR E MR
BRETHEBKRR BWOBEBILE
B UTRASERARENMEEL
BME :

Ah R B 2% K 35 & R

ERIEEEER
RARRK BREHBIERRAR
RICBMR :  RR{EAMRZ G
ub b iR E R
AR,

RERAR, HEXRAREBBR

EBOEYLBEHEXREERS - PR
WHEEAXTITIEESRKLEDH REA
EEZEERREF G MREL D F
XEHEYEBREBRERFAER -
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16. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 16. N &R E &)
(a) Business segments (a) ¥EBoEB
Segment information about these businesses is set out as EMZEEBRB 2O BEREH DT - i
follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2009 & F2009F12H31H I EE
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations
RECEEE CRLEGEER
oil Natural gas
exploitation and LPG Consolidated
ERAER
popieake RILAHE ]
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TER TER TET
Results E
Revenue from external customers RENREF 2 Wa 15,155 19,279 34,434
Segment results D EE (5,086) 7,817 2,731
Unallocated operating income and expenses AEEENARER (20,565) (4,744) (25,309)
Reportable segment (loss)/profit HRESH(BR) EH (25,651) 3,073 (22,578)
Finance costs BEKK (1,767) - (1,767)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB A A s - 11,593 11,593
Share of loss of a jointly controlled entity FELEREREEARESE (5,522) - (5,522)
(Loss)/profit before income tax expenses BHRBEZ A (ER) & (32,940) 14,666 (18,274)
Income tax expenses FEHEY = (651) (651)
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE(BB) /5 (32,940) 14,015 (18,925)
Assets and liabilities EERER ﬁ
Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 226,302 - 226,302 2
Unallocated assets APEEE 19,900 - 19,900 &
[T
Total assets BEE 246,202 - 246,202 S
—— S
flud
Reportable segment liabilities BE =L 54,362 - 54,362 ;%H‘
Unallocated liabilities APEERE 43,549 - 43,549 T,._;;
ki
S - 3R
Total liabilties AfReE 97,911 - 97,911 =

0o __
(92

i
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16. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 16. D&/ E =2)
(a) Business segments (Continued) (a) EBHE &)
Segment information about these businesses is set out as BREAZEEE 7 WEREFINWNOT : (&)

follows: (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Continued) &t F20095F 12531 H IEFEZE (&)

Continuing Discontinued

operations operations
FECEER CRLEEEER
Oil Natural gas
exploitation and LPG Consolidated
ERAER
papeake RILAHE &8
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TiER TER THER
Other segment information Hth o BE#
Depreciation and amortisation e R 7,377 1,779 9,156
Unallocated depreciation and amortisation AOBRMEREH 486 - 486
7,863 1,779 9,642
Capital expenditure incurred during the year FREECZERYH 134,553 - 134,553
Unallocated capital expenditure incurred FREEZANE
during the year BEAX 132 - 132
134,685 - 134,685
For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZ2008F12H31H IF F/E
Gontinuing
operations Discontinued operations
RELEEE BALLEESH
Operation of
Natural natural gas
Ol gas and pipeline
exploitation LPG network Subtotal  Gonsolidated
ARRR  HERRR
RARF  BEARR BEES g A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
TAL TAL AL AL AL
(Restated)
(mE3))
Results £ |
Revenue from external customers RENREP L& 4,206 35,858 2,674 38,532 40,738
Segment results PHEE (1,914) 13,785 (6,547) 7,038 5,324
Unallocated operating income and expenses AAREERARER (33,958 (16,781) (50,739)
Reportable segment loss IREHPER (35,872) (9,543) (45,415)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZEE - (87,531) (87,531)
Share of loss of a jointly controlled entity EELREEAEAAFR (4,372) - (4,372)




o
E
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16. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 16. 5T EBER & (&)
(a) Business segments (Continued) (a) XEFEHE (&)
Segment information about these businesses is set out as BRAZEEBR 2 DHPERFIWMT : (&) [ -
follows: (Continued) =
For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Continued) B 22008412431 H 1F F)Z (#&)
Continuing
operations Discontinued operations
RERELE BALEEER
Operation of
Natural natural gas
Ol gas and pipeline
exploitation LPG network Subtotal  Gonsolidated
AER  HERRR
RARE  REABR BEAS 28 5a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
TAL TAL AL AL TR
(Restated)
(& 5)
Loss before income tax expenses RHaEE (40,244) (97,074) (137,319)
Income tax expenses AR - (2,830) (2,830)
Loss for the year TEEER (40,244 (99,904) (140,148)
Assets and liabilities BERER
Reportable segment assets IRENDEE 86,09 22,537 = 22,537 108,632
Unallocated assets ADEEE 41,409 - - - 41,409
Total assets BEE 127,504 22,537 - 22,597 150,041
Reportable segment liabilties THENHEE 4,482 1,500 - 1,500 5,982
Unallocated liabities APEARE 11,630 - - - 11,630
Total liabiiies BEEE 16,112 1,500 - 1,500 17,612
— — — —— — 51{;5\‘_
Other segment information EbHBEs ti_
Depreciation and amortisation nEREH 3,365 3,342 9,21 12,563 15,928 §
Unallocated depreciation and amortisation AORMEREE 722 - - - 72 o
[T
&
4,087 3,342 9,221 12,563 16,650 mx
—— — — —— —— -@3
Capital expenditure incurred during the year ENEEZERYH 23,693 2,127 - 2,127 25,820 &
Unallocated capital expenditure incurred ERMEEZAIE f
during the year BARY 1,064 - - = 1,064 ﬁ
it
®
24,757 2,127 - 2,127 26,884 |

(02]
~N

e
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16. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(b) Geographical information and major
customers

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue from external customers and non-current assets
other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets and
post-employment benefit assets (“specified non-current
assets”).

16.

NEERE (2
(b) WMESHRETEERE

TERURAKERBEIATR 2= R
TRMTHE EERBEEERMBEREHN
BEUIINZHERDEE ([EEFRBDE
EETON -

Revenue from

external customers

Specified

non-current assets

KB
MREEZIE EREEE
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TFHET T T TFHET FHET
Hong Kong (place of 78 (FTfEH)
domicile) - - 1,122 1,570
The Peoples’ Republic  #F & A R 2L AN
of China (“the PRC”) (TP ) 33,345 38,532 133,807 9,550
The United States = 1,089 4,206 80,540 81,086
34,434 42,738 214,347 90,636
34,434 42,738 215,469 92,206

During the year, revenue from the Group’s largest customer
amounted to HK$14,066,000 (2008: HK$3,612,000), being
93% (2008: 86%) of the Group’s total revenue from the oil
exploitation segment.

For years 2009 and 2008, revenue from the Group’s largest
customer of the natural gas and LPG segment amounted to
less than 10% of the Group’s total revenue from the natural
gas and LPG Segment.

FRN REAEBZAEFR 2 W& E
14,066,0007% 7t (20084 : 3,612,000/
) EAREBAEBRFARS BREETE
293% (20084 : 86%) °

MR2009%2008F E A * i RAR K RIE
BHRRDEME REAEBHEANE—
EEMAEERAIRBREABRD S
a8 EE P F10% ©
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. V¥ - BERRE
The Group AEE
Natural gas [ -
pipeline E
network Furniture,
Buildings and Oil fixtures
held for  Leasehold ancillary Refilling andgas  and office Motor
own use improvements facilities stations  properties  equipment vehicles Total
AR fif BE
ReER HE  EiEgs RER
BF  HERE REEIN st HREE HOERG RE 4%
(note a) (note b)
(Bizta) (Fzb)
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS' 000
TR i ThEn TR Thr TR TR TR
Cost: BA:
At 1 January 2008 20081 A1A 5122 140 197,797 32,276 20,157 976 2,466 258,934
Bxchange adustments X HE 305 - 12,514 2,045 (187) 2 33 14,754
Additions NE 186 23 = 2,121 17,855 264 591 21,046
Disposals il (3,443) (140) (11,212) (2,208) - (182) (422) (17,627)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HENBAA
(note 36(0) (K36 - - (199,099) - - - - (199,099
At 31 December 2008 R2008E12A31H 2,190 23 - 34,220 37,825 1,082 2,068 78,008
Bxchange adjusiments ~ EXHEE 4 - - 73 197 1 1 276
Additions AE - 16 - 300 3,291 116 - 3,723
Acouired through business  BAZH A (F 2 ks
combination (note 37) (Rfzra7) - - - - 84,233 - - 84,288
Disposals k= - - - - - (295) - (295)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HENBAA
(note 36(a) (FF&E36(a)) (2,194) - - (34,599) - (212) (279) (37,271)
At 31 December 2009 H200912431H - 39 - - 125546 692 2,807 128,674
Accumulated depreciation 23t 7E R {H :
and impairment:
At 1 January 2008 20081 A1R 1,598 33 93,337 17,381 1,008 764 538 114,659
Exchange adjustments 3 102 - 5,999 1,128 (21) 17 20 7,245
Charge for the year (note 8) A3 i (Fi3£8) 97 2 9,001 3,036 3,147 131 462 16,126
Written back on disposal ~ HEREME (1,043) (66) (2,916) (664) - (120) (819) (5,018)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBAF - - (105,641) - - - - (105641)
(note 36(0)) (P 3£36(0))
Impaiment loss HEER - - - 8,337 - - - 8,887 »
HH-
At 31 December 2008 R2008%12A31H 754 9 - 29,318 4,134 792 701 35,708 ti
Exchange adiustments ~ EX B 2 - - 47 5 1 - 55 =
Charge for the year (note 8) 3% i (Fi£8) 49 12 - 1,540 7117 140 507 9,365 o
Written back on disposal it £ - - - - (295) - (295) w
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEHBAF p
(note 36(a) (P &E36(a)) (805) - - (30,905) (208) (46) (31,964) S,.m_x
T
At 31 December 2009 H2009512A31R - 21 - - 11,256 430 1,162 12,869 e
&
Cami ) . S
arrying amount; REE: o
At 31 December 2009 R2009E12A31H - 18 - - 114,290 262 1,285 115,805 :\%':
@
At 31 December 2008 H2008E12/31H 1,436 14 - 4,902 33,691 290 1,967 42,300

i
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
The Group (Continued)

(a)

The refilling stations were disposed of in July 2009.
During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group
carried out a review of the recoverable amount of its
refilling gas stations belonging to the natural gas and
LPG segment. The review led to the recognition of an
impairment loss of HK$8,337,000, which had been
recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable amount
of the relevant assets had been determined on the
basis of their value in use. The discount rate used in
measuring value in use was 16.385% per annum. The
impairment was included in “Other gains and losses”
(note 7).

Cost at the end of the reporting period included
exploration and evaluation assets of HK$1,336,000
(2008: HK$1,200,000) in respect of an oil exploitation
project in Shaanxi Province, the PRC.

17. V% - BMERRE 2

F&RE (&)

(@)

AR U R2009F7A HE - REE
2008F12A31HILFERN » A&
Bt TEBRRARRRIEAHR
DBz Rz AIBE SR - B H
% 51 & BHE 2R 0% B /& 188,337,000
B DRBEERR - EHEE
ZAIWEI & ERFEREBEEBTE - A
RAEFREBEZTREREF
16.385% ° HEBEE & A [H A
Wezs REE ] (FIFE7) ©

REZEB MNP ERKEAESRIK
BEZAHADRRTHEEK
AN £1,336,0007 ot (20084 :
1,200,000/ 7T) °
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18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

18. HERMARIA

e

The Group
2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January M1 A1B ZEREE 1,420 3,904
Exchange adjustments ME 3G B 8 239
Amortisation charge for the year REE 2 #HE T
(note 8) (P 5E8) (155) (306)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36(a)) &K B2 7 (M 7E36(a)) (1,273) =
Impairment loss (note 7) REEE (K1 5E7) - (2,417)
Carrying amount at 31 December M12A31H ZBREE - 1,420
Current portion of prepaid lease METEN B 2 BV H B
payments (included in (FF A H L FE Y2008 -
other receivables, deposits and e R RIE
prepayments (note 26)) (P 7E26)) = (187)
Non-current portion FEBNERES - 1,233

BETRPAEERBEL NP E -
FA - S L b HE Y FE36(a) T L 2 1R IE
SE-fHE -

The leasehold land is held under a medium-term lease and
situated in the PRC. The leasehold land was disposed of
with the Excellent Group during the year as set out in note
36(a).

RE E2008F12A31BIEFEREA + A&
i TBRRARRBRIEARRD S
ZHEERMNKB A KESEE - B#RK
segment. The review led to the recognition of an impairment BRI E 82,417,000 7T © B
loss of HK$2,417,000, which was recognised in profit or RIB&mER 2 [ e R EE | AR (K
loss included in “Other gains and losses” (note 7). 37) °

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group
carried out a review of the recoverable amount of its prepaid
lease payment belonging to the natural gas and LPG

B AR 2A A e 2009 F #H

T
=

Bl %7 B2 IR 4
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B & E
The Group AEE
QOil
exploitation
rights
himFARE
HK$’ 000
F& T
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2008 200841 A1H 43,382
Additions NE 5,838
Exchange differences b A & (309)
At 31 December 2008 R2008F12 A31H 48,911
Acquired through business MBETRE O 2 W
combinations (note 37) (Bt 5E37) 46,729
Exchange differences b A & 154
At 31 December 2009 R2009F 12 A31H 95,794
Accumulated amortisation: Fatiey -
At 1 January 2008 200841 H1H 20
Charge for the year (note 8) FAL L (H7E8) 218
At 31 December 2008 R2008F 12 A31H 238
Charge for the year (note 8) FAZH (HE8) 122
At 31 December 2009 R2009F 12 A31H 360
Carrying amount: AR E :
At 31 December 2009 #2009%¥12A31H 95,434
At 31 December 2008 72008412431 H 48,673
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 10. B EE #)
The Group (Continued) AEE (&)
Details of the Group’s oil exploitation rights are as follows: AREE 7 AMAREFBOT :
Qil fields Location Expiry date
JHH 2 FEAE
1 Grassy Trails Oil Field Carbon County and Emery County, Utah, USA Note
B H 3 B 79t 1 S AN EB J2 3L SE A AT Bt 52
2 Squaw Canyon Qil Field San Juan County, Utah, USA Note
52 FHER A 5= B 78 1t N 4B 22 BB Bt 5
8 Liuluoyu Qil Field Shaanxi Province, PRC 17 September 2023
7% Ui e FB hEpREA 202349 A17H
4 Yanjiawan Oil Field Shaanxi Province, PRC 17 September 2023
A 5 & i hEREE 20234 9H17H
Note: The exploitation rights of the oil field in USA do not have a Mgk : WARERZBEAZHAEETERIER
termination date and are valid as long as oil and or natural B REFEEMdESREESR
gas are produced from the reserves. R o
The exploitation rights were initially recognised at their fair ARENSRZRER 2 A TFEEREER
values on acquisition by reference to professional valuation ENEBREERAR (—HEBILEEMG
prepared by Assets Appraisal Limited, an independent firm BAR EAEHBEXZERRKER) &
of professional valuers which have the relevant professional TZEXEMBEERER W& FXRER
qualification and experience. Thereafter, the exploitation KRG = o

rights are measured using the cost model.

Amortisation is provided to write off the cost of the

exploitation rights using the units of production method i £ A B AR X S T % HR B8R J% HE T B SRR
based on the proven and probable oil and gas reserves. ENEEBMEETEN #HEETESE
The amortisation was charged to “direct costs” in the FHERRERZEEXAN]NIRE -

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

B AR 2A A e 2009 F #H

T
=

Bl %7 B2 IR 4
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Impairment testing on Goodwill
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to the cash generating units (“CGU”) of oil exploitation.

The recoverable amounts of the CGU have been determined
from value in use calculations based on cash flow
projections from formally approved budgets.

The following key assumptions have been made for the
purpose of analysis:

1 Discount rate 15%
2 Operating margin 39%
3 Growth rate 5%
4 Wage inflation 3%

The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant segment. The operating margin
and growth rate within the budgeted period have been
based on past experience. Wage inflation has been based
on the expected long term inflation rate set by the PRC
Government.

20. GOODWILL 20. W&
2009
HK$’ 000
TET
At 1 January 2009 and 2008 720094 2200841 H1H -
Acquired through business BRSSO 2 WiE
combinations (note 37(a)) (MI7£37(a)) 8,230
Impairment (note 7) BE (FaE7) (4,000)
Carrying amount as at MR2009%12831H 2
31 December 2009 REE 4,230

8 Z R E A

SBERENS  BEOEE A AR
ZReELBM([REELEM]) -
ReELBNZAREOSEIREER
BEEE  mEMREERNRELEELL

EREZBRERERAE -

RETON - SERTIEERR

1 FRE 15%
2  RREREE 39%
3 HEREX 5%
4 TEBIR 3%

PIERZTRESRBRBEAYBZEE
FERZBRAFTRE - QERNBERRER
HAZEERDNREBERCRETE - T
BBERIDBREPERA 2 EHEABRE

EE -
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21.
ENTITY

The Group has a 50% interest in

INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED

a jointly controlled

entity which is accounted for using the equity method of

accounting.

Particulars of the Group’s jointly controlled entity are as

follows:

-
tE

Bk

21.

SARTE

AEBZXFAEESER

Percentage of
ordinary shares

AEER—REH
BERAHEBAE0%E R °

MiREESEATZ

£ R 4% 1

A2 AT

Name of company Form of business structure Place of incorporation indirectly held Principal activity
BERFLER

ATER E3FES 3 gt MR 2 Ak EERH

Smart Win International Limited Limited company The British Virgin Islands 50% Investment holding

JRRARERAR BRAT RERAES 50%  REAR

The following amounts have been

recognised in the

RERABEAAAT 2 THSEERE

consolidated statement of financial position and EMBMRABRRREEEENERF T
consolidated statement of comprehensive income relating to LATERR o
this jointly controlled entity.
2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTERT FAT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMRGD - KA
As at 1 January ®1A1H 15,128 19,500
Less: share of post acquisition losses & : 25 U B# 1% E5 18 (5,522) (4,372)
9,606 15,128
Total assets REE 19,293 30,403
Total liabilities BEER (80) (147)
Net assets BEFE 19,213 30,256
Group’s share of net assets AEEDIEEEFE 9,606 15,128
Turnover HERR - -
Expenses S H (11,044) (8,744)
Loss for the year KEEFHIE (11,044) (8,744)
Group’s share of loss for the year AKEEREBD(HEE (5,522) (4,372)

B AR 2A A e 2009 F #H

T
=

Bl %7 B2 IR 4
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(Vo)
(o))

2009 are listed below. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless stated otherwise.

22. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. RBAS ZzHE=

The Company AAT
2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TER FAT
Unlisted equity investments, at cost  JE ETIRR AL E @ LKA 81,148 81,147
Less: impairment loss (note 22(b)) B OREEE (M 5E22(0)) (81,143) (81,143)
5 4

Amounts due from subsidiaries e = NGIE

(note 22(c)) (F¥sE22(c)) 92,978 124,906
92,983 124,910
(@) Details of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December (a) MR2009%F12A31H EE M E A 7

ZHBWMT -BREBHBEN M
M ERNAE B -

Proportion of ownership interest

BeRES
Place of Particulars of Group’s Held Held
incorporation/ issued and effective by the by a
Name of company operation paid up capital holding Company subsidiary Principal activity
wE A 3 ERTREE FEEER BF4F BB
AEER /BERE RAFR ke #E QFRA IERH
Elite Ascend Holdings Limited The British Virgin 690 shares of 100% 100% = Investment holding
Islands (“BVI") US$1 each
REZRARAA RBRAHS BI0RR & k1% T REER
Chuang Xin Management Hong Kong 2 shares of 100% 100% = Provision of management
Services Limited HK$1 each services to group
companies
BHERRBEARAR B 2REBRIET MEBRAREERRY
Genesis Energy Hong Kong 2 shares of 100% = 100% Provision of administrative
(Hong Kong) Limited HK$1 each services 1o group
companies
EIFaR (BR) AR AR BB 2MRBRIET MEE R A RETHRS
Grand Rise Development Hong Kong 100 shares of 100% 100% = Investment holding
Limited? HK$1 each
EERRERARP B 100R BRI RERR
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22. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@) Details of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December (a)
2009 are listed below. The class of shares held is

ordinary unless stated otherwise. (Continued)

22 B ATIZHER (&)

N2009F12A31B T EM B A 7
2B - BRBAEHBEIN BT | -

RO BRI R E B - (F)

Proportion of ownership interest

BRESHL
Place of Particulars of Group’s Held Held
incorporation/ issued and effective by the by a
Name of company operation paid up capital holding Company subsidiary Principal activity
AL ERTREAR AEEER HFLF BB
ACEA /BEhY RAFE ke BE  LERA TEER
Toppace Limited 2 BVI 100 shares of 100% 100% - Investment holding
US$1 each
ERERAR? RERNES 1008k FFR1E T RERR
Genesis Petroleum US, Inc.* Utah, the USA 10,000 shares of 90% - 90% Qil exploitation and
US$0.01 each sale of crude oll
BRI 10,000% & /R0.01% T BRRARREERA
Xian Hong Chang Co,. Ltd ' The PRC Registered capital 95% = 95% Consultation and technical
RMBS5,000,000 support of oil wells
e FRBRAARE A R A
5,000,0007T
Shenzhen Bi Yuan Technology The PRC Nil 90% = 90% Inactive
Development Co., Ltd 123
AERREREARAF 2 RE i LEXH
Bi Tuo Yuan Technology The PRC Registered capital 100% - 100% Participation in oil
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd*® RMB500,000 exploitation
RRREE ORI BRA RS e FRMBRAARE SEA AT
500,0007T
G Energy US Holdings Inc. Utah, the USA 500 shares of 100% - 100% Investment holding
US$375 each
B 500k & RR375% T RERR
DEX
Nathan Oil LLC ¢ Nevada, the USA  Capital contribution 51% - 51% Participation in oil K
US$750,000 exploitation and sale of 3
kST BT A crude oil &
750,000% 7T SERBERRHERE ,E
&
B
i
=
&
U
ki
iR
@

O __
~

e
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22. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@) Details of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2009 are listed below. The class of shares held is

ordinary unless stated otherwise.

L . registered under the laws of the PRC as a sino-foreign equity

enterprise
2 : newly incorporated/acquired in 2009
8 in process of liquidation
4 . not audited by BDO Limited
5 ! registered under the laws of the PRC as a wholly-owned

foreign enterprise.

(b) Impairment on investments

The movement in the provision for impairment loss during

the year was as follows:

(Continued)

in subsidiaries

22 B ATIZHER (&)
(a) M2009F12A31H = EK B A 7
ZHEBIT - BRBERBPEN P
FRMDERN AL B - (&)

T RERBRERERATIIGELE

2o JA20094F ¥ i AR AL

3 IF3

aff
b

T

62
NN

f RERFEAMEBAAERRARER

S REPEERETARINEBELE

(b) MRMIBABZRERIE
AERRBELREBZEESHMT :

The Company

AAT
2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FH&ERT THT
At 1 January 1 H1H 81,143 52,805
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE - 28,338
At 31 December M12H31H 81,143 81,143

Provision for impairment loss is made based on the
directors’ annual assessment by reference to the net assets

of the subsidiaries.

(c) Amounts due from subsidiaries

An analysis of the amounts due from subsidiaries is listed

below:

BEBRERN2ENBRARZEER
ERBEESSFZFEMEL -

(c) FEWPHEBABIRIE
FEM KB AR KB Z AT :

The Company

EAT
2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FH&ET F& T
Due from subsidiaries i NG E e 405,441 351,571
Less: impairment loss B OREEE (312,463) (226,665)

92,978 124,906
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22.

23.

24.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 22. RMIBASI Z2H#EZE 2)
(c) Amounts due from subsidiaries (Continued) (c) FEUGPIBATIFRIE (£)
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- FEWNB AR REAEEKA 22 F
free and in substance represent the Company’s investments F EIRARDRRRMEB R A A ZER &
in the subsidiaries in the form of quasi-equity loans. ERFEAIELZITE -
The movements in the provision for impairment loss during FRRBEEREG 2 EEBHET :
the year were as follows:
The Company
EAT
2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TER FHETT
At 1 January M1H1H 226,665 134,670
Additional provision BINES 100,712 93,446
Reversal of provision A # O] (14,914) (1,451)
At 31 December M12A31H 312,463 226,665
The impairment loss on amounts due from subsidiaries is FEWH B AT RE BEEEITHES
made by the directors by reference to the net assets of the Z2EZWBARIZEBEFEMEL -
subsidiaries.
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23, Tt HEIRSES
Available-for-sale investments represent investments in listed AEHEREENRES EMRHZEE -
shares in Hong Kong and are stated at fair value. During the TWIEATFEAE EFR K ESD H
year, the investments were disposed of resulting in a gain € - I E A 381,056,000 7T & F A
of HK$1,056,000 which was included in other gains and Huezs % (Ei8) (Mf:x7) o
(losses) (note 7).
PLEDGED DEPOSITS 24. BIRIBE R

The amount represents fixed deposits pledged to cover the
estimated future assets retirement costs for the exploitation
of crude oil in the USA as required under the laws and
regulations of the USA (note 30).

BRREERBERBEDAG SR 2R E
AR MRREBERAGFTRAREER
BRAELER 2 E BfF R (KTEE30) -

B AR 2A A e 2009 F #H

oo
=

Bl %7 B2 IR 4
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25.

26.

INVENTORIES 25. &
The Group
AEE
2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTER FAT
Crude oil R 446 =
Spare parts, consumables and others Z &1  JHFE R & H A - 51
446 51
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 26. FEWCBRSR « H b FEUG B Sk - 3%
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS S RFERRIE
The Group The Company
EEEH AAT
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#&ERT AT TERT THT
Trade receivables JfE s BR X 3,117 = - =
Bills receivable U ZE 1,707 - - -
Other receivables Hh fE W R IE 937 1,026 480 471
Amount due from a e U — FE B 8 A &)
minority equity holder LERERB A
of a subsidiary IR
(note 44(d)) (P 7E44(d)) 160 1,690 - =
5,921 2,716 480 471
Utility and other deposits 7KE R E %€ 599 384 - -
Prepayments TEI 5RIE 220 416 82 154
Prepaid lease payments & B {7 3 H
(note 18) (PfF7E18) - 187 - =
819 987 82 154
6,740 3,703 562 625
Prepayments and prepaid lease payment are expected to be A ENFELEERANTER —F
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year. Ak EkEZERY -



26.

Y
4
Notes to the Financial Statements g
75 4R R M & -
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA oat &) 'Lh "\,\_
Lo
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 26. FEMTARFR - H b FEUCARTR - 1%
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued) ERFEFRE @)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the end of JE U AR SRR R 45 B 45 SR e 2 BRES D AT p
reporting period is as follows: R
The Group The Company
*5E X227
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHERT THETT FHET THET
< 30 days L RB0K 2,606 - - =
30 - 60 days 30E60X 511 - - -

27.

The average credit period granted to customers is 30 days
from the invoice date.

All the trade receivables are less than one month past due
and not impaired.

The Group recognised impairment loss on individual
assessment based on the accounting policy stated in note

4(i)i).

NOTE RECEIVABLE

The note receivable as at 31 December 2008 represented
the unpaid consideration for the disposal of Statemoon
as set out in note 36(b). The note with a carrying value of
HK$12,661,000 was assigned during the year to settle the
consideration for the acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37(a)).

3,117 - = _

SEGEEFPHNYHEENAHEREID
3&0

PIERUBERRBEE -—EAR - #8
BIERIE -

2R &= BAR SR P &R 4() () P 8 < & 5T BUR
i 8 {8 Bl S HE SRR E B 1R -

&y ZE 48

MR2008F12A31H 2 B E K H &
B (F A I 7E36(0)) Z R RE - R
# % BR H {E 512,661,000/ 7T 2 = # /A
R AAUREE —EWE AR 2B (K E
37(a)) °

27.

.i]

Al EE R IER B IR A » 2009 F 3R

i
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28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28. IR&RIEEEY
The Group The Company
AEHE AAT
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TFHERT THAT THET FHT
Cash and bank balances, A RN7|E#¥HEZE S
denominated in N ARA1T 45 84
- Hong Kong dollars — BT RET
and United States
dollars 5,324 6,651 55 1,536
- Renminbi — AR 5,211 12,971 - -
10,535 19,622 55 1,536
Cash and cash equivalents of HK$5,211,000 (equivalent 5,211,000/ 7t (#8& M A R #4,579,000
to RMB4,579,000 (2008: HK$12,971,000, equivalent to L) 2R e R FEW20084F :
RMB11,421,000) were denominated in Renminbi. Renminbi 12,971,000 T HER AR K
is not a freely convertible currency and the remittance of 11,421,0007T) A AR E AR
funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions WHEREREYE RPEELESA
imposed by the PRC Government. 2R B AT 2 FINEEE BR i) BT AR PR o
29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 2. HihEFRIERERER
The Group The Company
AEH AAT
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET AT TERT FABT
Other payables HapE R iERER
and accruals 21,330 6,910 2,018 877
Amount due to a minority & — BB A 7l D&
equity holder of a IRHERE B ARIE
subsidiary (note 44(d)) (Pff 7E44(d)) 270 = = =
Amount due to a JE AT 42 IR B 3R B IE
controlling equity (KT 7£44(d))
holder (note 44(d)) - 8,721 - -
Amounts due to JEEE IR
directors (note 44(d)) (BFf 5E44(d)) 167 901 167 901
21,767 16,532 2,185 1,778
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30. PROVISIONS 30. ¥
The Group
$$ E:l, !
e
2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TFERT FET
Balance at 1 January M A1B Z &% 338 =
Additional provision (note 8(c)) # N AE 5 (BT RE8(c)) - 338
Balance at 31 December M128318 2 & & 338 338
The provision represents directors’ estimated assets ZIEEFIEEHGRER 2 AR EEER B
retirement obligations relating to oil and gas properties VEEMEEEEBWREE -
located in the USA.
31. CONVERTIBLE NOTE 31. TR ERE
The Group and Company AEERAAT
The Company issued a convertible note with a 2% coupon A RATIR2009F4 308 1T E & K A
rate on 30 April 2009. The convertible note is denominated 2% 27 Al A IG EE - Al ARG Z IR LA S T ET
in Hong Kong dollars. The note matures in four years from & - Z ¥ H|{E A25,000,000/ 75 © B %
the issue date at its nominal value of HK$25,000,000 and THEREANERNDE - WA kiEEH
can be converted into ordinary shares of the Company AZEEUER046E T BREHR A
at the holder’s option at the rate of 54,347,826 shares at KR RA)54,347,826% I @ AL o

HK$0.46 per share.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity BEXS REZREBRIS 7 ATEIR
conversion component were determined at the date of AR EERTHSEEE - ABEH 2
issue of the convertible note. The fair value of the liability ANEBEEAEERHVEEBEAE  $H
component, included as non-current financial liabilities, was FAETAHRREE TSN ETE - £
calculated using the market interest rate for an equivalent MIEE S ER IS 7 (EE - B IELER
non-convertible note. The residual amount, representing the B (InE) BT AR -

value of the equity conversion component, is included in
equity net of deferred income taxes, if any.

B AR 2A A e 2009 F #H

T
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31. CONVERTIBLE NOTE (Continued)
The Group and Company (Continued)

The convertible note recognised in the statement of financial

position is calculated as follows:

31. TR ER &)
FEBERENT (F)
R HROR R R Y AR R =R &
—F g

The Group and
the Company

ERER
EAT
2009
HK$’ 000
FHET

Face value of convertible note R4 A30H 21T 2 Al 2k
issued on 30 April EEmEE 25,000
Equity component (note 35(c)(v)) =58 (F1E35(c)(v)) 9,489

Liability component on initial recognition R4 A308 F]F 1R

at 30 April BEED 15,511
Imputed interest expense (note 8(a)) FEET A B X (Ff 5E8(a)) 1,555
Interest paid =ENEESS (242)
Liability component at 31 December M12A31B 2B E# D 16,824

Imputed interest expense on the convertible note is
calculated using the effective interest method by applying
the effective interest rate of 14.12%.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the convertible
note, the Company may, at any time before the maturity
date by serving at least seven days’ prior written notice
on the note holder, redeem the note at 100% of the
outstanding principal amount (in whole or in part). This
redemption right constituted as an embedded derivative in
accordance with HKAS 32. In the opinion of an independent
professional valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, the fair value
of this embedded derivative is closed to nil as at the issue
date and 31 December 2009.

ARG IR 2 FEAT A B S B Th IR ' B A
E1412%F A ERF BIEFTE -

BREAIBKRER ZGREGEE - AQA
A PA R EY B B 2 AE AT B R B iR R R IR
BABEHZE L ERZSEEEETBAHN - N
100% 2 REEARAEE (2H K H) B
BIE#%E - RBEE B S ERIFEI2% - &
EREERBRARITETR - RIEBL
EXHEM-EEFEERBER AR Z
E R mME17HH K2009F12H311 -
ZMARPTETEZATFERLS -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt F5 3R Pt 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JAE Joat &)

32. DEFERRED TAX 32, IREHIA
Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and FRNEAZELEHRBEBEMNEEZFIE
movements during the year: &=L
Revaluation
of property,
plant and Intangible
equipment assets Total
EffME -
MERRE BREEE e
HK$ HK$ HK$
7T S TT P TT
At 1 January 2009 7200941 A 18 - - -
Arising from business
combination during the F R KR A2009%12 A31 H
year and at 31 December ETERE O 2 WS
2009 (note 37) (B 5£37) (779) (11,682) (12,461)
(779) (11,682) (12,461)
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note BEMF4MATEH 2 5B R  AEE
4(m), the Group has unused tax losses and deductible REEE BB 9 5/35,510,000% 7T (2008
temporary differences of HK$35,510,000 (2008: F : 13,864,000/ 7t) &= 7% T (2008
HK$13,864,000) and HK$Nil (2008: HK$2,689,000) % : 2,689,000 L) 2 RB A B EEE
respectively at the end of reporting period. No deferred tax KA MR TR =% - M EBER G A
assets for the unused tax losses is recognised as it is not HEEREETreELEREREEE
probable that future taxable profits against which the losses HERERTGAEN ST ERIASEH
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction HEE 7 ELEHRBEE BERBEZH
and entity. The tax losses will expire in twenty years from FoEkf  ZEBRBEERBBEELE ZF
the year in which they were incurred under current tax ERst—t+F&Em-
legislation.
33. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 33. EERMAKET

(@ The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, both
the employer and each employee are required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$20,000 by each party. Contributions to
the plan vest immediately.

@ AEERBEHEZARSMEABESE
ZEH - RRBEBEBEINZE
ZEERERFEARSE ([5&
Beitgll) - BB E BB
MEFAEREZ BB TR KRG
gl RERBESTE  EEXRERE
ESABEEEBEZEBKRAZS%
EREE - ST ABBIKAL
20,000/ 7T & EBR » MFEFEIEH <
KRB FREFTA o

B AR 2A A e 2009 F #H

oo
=

Bl %7 B2 IR 4

N
o —
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA7 7oat &)

33. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(Continued)

(b)  Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised
by the relevant local government authorities, whereby
the Group is required to make contributions to the
Schemes at a rate ranging from 18% to 22% of the
eligible employees’ salaries. The local government
authorities are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees which are
calculated based on a certain percentage of the basic
payroll.

34. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 6 March 2002 for a period of ten years
commencing from 6 March 2002 whereby the directors
of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to
invite employees of the Group, including directors of any
companies within the Group, to take up options to subscribe
for shares of the Company. The terms and conditions of
the grant are determined by the Board at the time of grant.
In any event, the exercisable period of an option must not
exceed a period of ten years commencing on 6 March
2002. The options give the holder the right to subscribe for
ordinary shares in the Company. A nominal consideration
of HK$1 is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of
an option. Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the
Group.

33. EERAKEA 2

o) WRETFERBEEBRAUEER &
SE2EAABEMBTHEER
ZEBHEFRKEMEE ([ZF
AtEl) - Bt AKEARAER
EEFHF 2N F18%E22%MZF 5
EEH R - BT HEI AL E
NERAREEZ2MEAKRESEMER
B ZFENRENIRBERFZ
XEBDLAE -

4. REAGERLURGHZHFZX 5

NN A HA200243 A6 B £ 47 — T8 BE A% 4
5T #) - 5200243 A6H #E & 8104 - #&
I AAREZERERNBERASEE
B (BRASBEEMNKEARIZES)R
IR E  ARBEARARIRG - BHHEZ
BRAREHHRETERNREREE - £
EMERT - BREZ] TIEANE
BB H2002F3 A6 H B &F + & - AR #E
MTRHEAEFNREBEARR L AR - &
KEREZATREMNBRER  BX
NEBAREBIB T - WEEBEAALS
AR B AR o
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34.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) The terms and conditions of the share options that (a) AT AEE2009F &2008%F12 A

existed during the years ended 31 December 2009
and 2008 were as follows and all options are settled

by physical delivery of shares:

(%)

4. EEERUEHZF 22X 5

BIHEFREFERBBEZIGRR R
fRft PAEBERELDEBRERRN

in & -

Contractual Contractual
Exercise Number of Life of
Date of grant Vesting condition  Exercise period price Options options
Bk
REBH GBI TRHR BWTRE BREYE BHEN
Options granted to directors:
RrESZHRE:
- on 2 November 2005 Immediately 3 November 2005 to 2 November 2010 HK$0.035 23,000,000 5 years
—R2005F11H2H k=3 200511 A3H £2010F11 A2A 0.035% T 23,000,000 5%
- on 2 November 2006 Immediately 2 November 2006 to 1 November 2011 HK$0.053 70,000,000 5 years
— 12006511 H2H ki3 2006F11 A28 £2011F11 A 1A 0.053% T 70,000,000 5%
- on 22 August 2007 Immediately 22 August 2007 to 5 March 2012 HK$0.375 48,000,000 4.5 years
—7200768A22R BB 20078220 220124358 0.3758 7 48,000,000 455
- on 21 August 2008 Immediately 21 August 2008 to 5 March 2012 HK$0.180 29,000,000 3.5 years
—R2008F8A21H ki3 2008F8A21H £2012F3A5H 01807 T 29,000,000 3.5
- on 7 November 2008 Immediately 7 November 2008 to 5 March 2012 HK$0.060 9,000,000 3 years
— 2008511 A7H i3 200811 A7H £2012%3A5H 0.060% T 9,000,000 3F
Option granted to employees:
RTREEZERE:
- on 2 November 2005 Immediately 3 November 2005 to 2 November 2010 HK$0.035 4,000,000 5 years
— 2005511 A2H ki3 200511 A3A £2010%11 A2A 0.035% T 4,000,000 5%
- on 2 November 2006 Immediately 2 November 2006 to 1 November 2011 HK$0.053 30,000,000 5 years
— 12006411 A2A i 2006511 H2B Z2011611 A1R 0.0537 7T 30,000,000 56
- on 26 January 2007 Immediately 26 February 2007 to 25 February 2012 HK$0.189 288,250,000 5 years
— 20071 A26H i3 20072 A 268 £2012F2A25A 01897 T 288,250,000 5%
- on 22 August 2007 Immediately 22 August 2007 to 5 March 2012 HK$0.375 351,500,000 4.5 years
—H200768A220 e 20074584228 £201263A5R 0.375%7T 351,500,000 455
-on 21 August 2008 Immediately 21 August 2008 to 5 March 2012 HK$0.180 23,900,000 2.5 years
~R2008F8A21H illiss 20078 A21H 2201283 A5H 0.180% T 23,900,000 25
- on 7 November 2008 Immediately 7 November 2008 to 5 March 2012 HK$0.060 91,300,000 3 years
—R2008F11A7H ks 2008F11 A7H £2012F3A5H 0.0607 T 91,300,000 3%
Total share options B 7€ 22 &1

967,950,000

B AR A A e 2009 F #H

T
=

Bl %7 B2 IR

—_
o —
~N
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA Joat &)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
of the shares options during the year was HK$0.24 (2008:
HK$0.29).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2009 had exercise
prices of HK$0.035, HK$0.053, HK$0.189, HK$0.375,
HK$0.18 and HK$0.06 (2008: HK$0.035, HK$0.053,
HK$0.189, HK$0.375, HK$0.18 and HK$0.06) respectively
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.1
years (2008: 3.1 years).

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted are measured with reference to the fair value of
share options granted. The estimate of the fair values of the
services received is measured based on the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. Lives of the options are incorporated
into the model.

34. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 4. RAGHUBRGBZfF2X 5
TRANSACTIONS (continued) (4&)
(b) The number and weighted exercise prices of share (b) FEREZEE RMETEENT :
options are as follows:
2009 2008
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise of share exercise of share
price options price options
EFY hn#E 15
TEE BREXNE TEE FBERRERE
HK$ ’000 HK$ 000
BT T BT T A%
Outstanding at REH HRITE
beginning of the year 0.221 1,055,250 0.250 857,250
Granted during the year FARDY - - 0.096 200,000
Exercised during the year FR{T{# 0.077 (86,800) 0.189 (2,000)
Lapsed during the year F KR 0.375 (500) = =
Outstanding at the RE R A ARITE
end of the year 0.233 967,950 0.221 1,055,250
Exercisable at the RERA T1TE
end of the year 0.233 0.221

967,950 1,055,250

FRN - EREETESH 2 NEFER
& 50.247 7T (20084 : 0.29%87T) °

MR2009F 12831 H » W AITHEEREZ
171E 8 % 5l £0.0357% 7T * 0.0537% 7t
0.189/ Jt ~ 0.375% T  0.188 T &
0.067% 7T (20084F : 0.035/8 7T * 0.053/%
JT ~ 0.18958 JT ~ 0.375/% 7T » 0.18/8 TT
K0.06%7T) - MiNEFEHR T & D F
H1 /52,14 (20084 : 3.14) o

(c) BREZAFERRE

SRR B R T 1S IR TS 2 A AR T
SEFEHUBEREZ ATEFE - FiE
BRI 2 ATEDREEHRERIETE
R E - R E SRR Y
HIER -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA 7Tat &) ‘.“\ :
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34. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 4. RAGHUBRGBZF2X 5
TRANSACTIONS (continued) (&)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BREZATFERRR b
(Continued) (%)
7 November 21 August 22 August 26 January 2 November 2 November
Date of grant 2008 2008 2007 2007 2006 2005
20084 20085 20075 20074 20065 20055
RHBaH 11A7H 8A218 8A228 1A 268 11A28 11A28
Fair value at measurement date HK$0.014 HK0.032 HK$0.035 HK$0.011 HK$0.013 HK$0.011
RErERE ATE 0.01487T 00328 0.035% T 0.011% T 00138 0.0118 T
Share price HK$0.06 HK$0.18 HK$0.375 HK$0.189 HK$0.053 HK$0.035
& 0.0677T 0.1887T 0.375% T 0.189/ T 0.053% T 0.035% T
Exercise price HK$0.18 HK$0.18 HK$0.375 HK$0.189 HK$0.053 HK$0.035
IRE 01887 01887 0.3758 7 0.189% T 0.053 T 0.035% 7T
Expected volatility 58.06% 50.73% 56.02% 33.69% 85.73% 91.42%
BHKE
Expected life 1 year 1 year 0.17 year 0.16 year 0.75 year 0.74 year
BHEH 1% 14 017%F 0.16% 0.75% 0.74%
Expected dividends 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
EHRE
Risk-free interest rate (based on the yields to
maturity of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note) 0.48% 1.63% 4.00% 3.73% 3.60% 3.90%

ERBNZE (BRENELLRRIBREXHE)

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.

B R 0E T3 DA B SEOR R A A (IR B
MR GFRFTE) Wik
RFAABERNZEHRK KB ZEEH
AE-TBHREDEELEE RKIE -
TEBRZED A YR FEMBABEK

Changes in the subjective input assumptions could BEATE - ﬁ
materially affect the fair value estimate. 3

&
Share options were granted under a service condition. This BERBIZRSEERD - ZBEHEI KR "%
condition has not been taken into account in the grant FAFMESHRENRNEZLEBEZ AFE - “
date fair value measurement of the services received. There % R IS R B T O (R I R R o uss
were no market conditions associated with the share option f':
granted. fj

LS
The Group recognised total expenses of HK$Nil (2008: RER AEEBRIZRALEE UKD ﬁ
HK$3,877,000) related to equity-settled share-based YRR Z2EEETZES T (20084 - %

payment transactions during the year (note 8).

3,877,000/ 7T) (KfzE8) °

—_
o —
(o]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA Joat &)

35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(@) Share capital
(i) Authorised and issued share capital

35. EX Rt

(a) B=x

() EEREFTRA
The Company

EAT
2009 2008
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
e B &8 iz fn 25 B ik}
’000 HK$’ 000 "000 HK$’ 000
T i% FET T FH T
Authorised ETE
Ordinary shares of SR EE0.01B T
HK$0.01 each I 3m A% 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid EEITRHARE
Ordinary shares of SR EE0.01E T
HK$0.01 each &R
At beginning of the year REH] 4,226,884 42,269 4,224,884 42,249
Shares issued under R AR T 2
share option scheme (ii) BT 9 (i) 86,800 868 2,000 20
Shares issued for BLULHE B 1T
acquisitions (iii) &z 17 (ii) 72,464 724 — —
At end of the year RER 4,386,148 43,861 4,226,884 42,269

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally regard to
the Company’s residual assets.

(i) Shares issued under share option scheme

During 2009, options were exercised to subscribe
for 86,800,000 (2008: 2,000,000) ordinary shares in
the Company at a consideration of HK$6,678,000
(2008: HK$378,000) of which HK$868,000 (2008:
HK$20,000) was credited to share capital and the
balance of HK$5,810,000 (2008: HK$358,000) was
credited to the share premium account. HK$1,301,000
(2008: HK$33,000) has been transferred from the
share option reserve to the share premium account in
accordance with accounting policy set out in note 4(0)

(i).

EERFBEABRKBTEEIRLZ
BE - WERRBANEG EBRAIE
—EREE B EBRYEART
ZHBTEEZEREEE -

(i)  IHIERIEE EFE TR G
R2009%F - R EE B1THE XN
R B N 1A 7]86,800,000/% (2008
£ : 2,000,0000%) L@ - KE A
6,678,000/ 7t (20084 : 378,000
7S T)  H A #49868,0005% 7T (2008
F : 20,0008 L) 5T AR A - 8
T 495,810,000/ Jjt (20084 :
358,000/ 7t) & A B 17 % (B B ©
R B 5E4O) (NPT 8k 2 & 5B K
1,301,000/ JT(2008%F : 33,0005
T)EEBRERESEZRMD R
BiR -
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35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 35. EXR N fEE =)
(a) Share capital (Continued) (a) & (&)

(i) Shares issued for acquisitions (i) BEYEEFETTIR (7 e,

On 17 February 2009, the Company’s issued share MN2009F2 /8178 » &R & 1T

capital was increased by HK$724,000 as a result of the 72,463,768/% i% {7 LA 1E A& U BE 2= 33

issue of 72,463,768 shares as part of the consideration BRA A (FRWE37(@) 232

for the acquisition of Toppace Limited as set out in KRB AAF 2B EITIRAEMN

note 37(a). The fair value of the consideration shares 724,000 7L - RERH 2 A FE

as determined by the closing market price of HK$0.37 426,811,000 JT * 51200942

per share on 17 February 2009 (being the date of A17H (AKX BE) 2 WmEE

completion) was HK$26,811,000. The premium on the BRO.B7THBILERE - BITFHRMH 2%

issue of new shares amounted to HK$26,087,000 was & A&26,087,000/8 7t * B & A%

credited to the share premium account. (B AR o

(b) The Company (b) AEAT

Share Convertible

Share Share Contributed option note equity Accumulated
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
ThERE

ks RiaR GBHER BRERERE RAEH RHER ]
Notes  HKS'000  HKE'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
W& TEr TR TEn TR TER  TER  TER

At 1 January 2008 #2008%1A1H 42,249 364,389 81,043 18,589 - (51837) 254438
Share options exercised BT RRRE 35(a() 20 391 - (33) - - 378
Equity settled share-based BAEENRD XA
fransactions LR 5 - - - 3,877 - - 3877
Total comprehensive AEERANGLS
income for the year = = = = - (133,3%) (133,399
At 31 December 2008 #2008%12A31H 42,269 364,780 81,043 22,433 - (385232 125,293
Issue of convertile note FTUARRR 31 - - - - 9,489 - 9,489 .
Share options exercised BiTERERE 35(a)() 868 7,111 - (1,301) - - 6,678 K
Shares issued for WERARA %
acquisitions 37(a) 724 26,087 - - - - 26,811 ‘:‘
Total comprehensive rEERENGEE =
income for the year - - - - - (93,680) (93,680) S{
I
At 31 December 2009 JR2009612A31H 43,861 397,978 81,043 21,132 9,489 (478912 74,591 E‘?
—_— e e s e e -
ki
iR
&
|
111

e
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35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)  Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the
issue of shares at a price in excess of their par value
per share and is not distributable but may be applied
in paying up unissued shares of the Company to be
issued to the equity holders of the Company as fully
paid bonus shares or in providing for the premiums
payable on repurchase of shares.

(i) Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus of the Company arises when the
Company issues shares in exchange for the shares
of subsidiaries being acquired, and represents the
difference between the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued and the value of net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is
available for distribution to equity holders. However,
the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or
make distributions out of contributed surplus if:

- it is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

- the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium account.

(iii)  Share option reserve

Share option reserve represents the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Company
recognised in accordance with accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 4(0)(ii).

(iv)  Exchange reserve
Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside Hong Kong which
are dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 4(n).

35. X Rl @)
(c) HEHERAR

) BwE

P40 )48 18 5 LA R th B B AR E (B (B
RBETROMES Z A 2K
B - BRI RESBARARKIERS
RARAARBRERAEAETLZ
RBEITROKESIIE R KD 2 -

(g -

(i) HAEEF
RRBZHHEBRKB A REELT
R AZIFT AN B 2 7l 2 IR
- ZBHHEERRNAREHEITK
EEEMBANBRAREERE
ZHEZEB REARE—NN—
FRAENE (BIEFT) - GMARA
FD R TR A A © R - (3
ETHNER KRBT EIRKK
IR B B ERBERIEL DK

- RN EBEAXAEEEE
BIHEE K

- BHEEZAUZEEBEEERR
BfE - BERITERAREDE
BRZEH -

(i) FERRIERFE
BREFERDCAARREERE
ZEBRRIEEFTEE 2 M ARITEER
2 AFE - BRI E4(0))5E
ARG S 7 2 BB FT R & 5T UK
ERAK °

(v) EX#RE
EXFEERRARERBUIINER
Z K A 5| 2 P A SMNE =
B TR R AN PT & 2 & 5
REIE o
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35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(v)  Convertible note equity reserve
The reserve represents the equity component
(i.e. option to convert the note into shares) of the
convertible note issued by the Company.

(vi)  Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents capital contribution from
a controlling equity holder in the form of interest-free
loans. The amounts are estimated by discounting the
nominal value of the non-interesting bearing loans to
the Group at current market interest rate for similar
financial instruments.

35. EX Rt =)

B AR 2A A e 2009 F #H

T
=

— — A 3 88 R ¥

vl
U1
Y
A
=
(c) REEHERRAE @)
() ERREERA ;
RERRATNBEZ TRERERY
B D IS REHR ARG 2
RIZHE) -
() EXEE
EARBEERBEALSERY
FRIEEZBATE - RESER
BUS BT ARG SHRFRE
MAKEEL 2 BB ER Y AEE
fTfhst -
1
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Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration received
Cash and cash equivalents balances

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. HEMEBAT
(a) Disposal of subsidiaries during the year (a) #HE2009F12A31HIEEER
ended 31 December 2009 HEMBAS
As referred to in note 12, on 11 May 2009, the Group w0t FE1287 it - 20095811 H @ K
disposed of Excellent Group which is engaged in the SELEENRELEHEXRARERILA
operation of refilling stations supplying natural gas and LPG. HRZEBMG s REER - BELEER
The net assets of Excellent Group as at the completion date HETKRBE ZEEFENT -
of disposal were as follows:
2009
HK$’ 000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment (note 17) Y% - BEREE(HFE17) 5,307
Land lease prepayment (note 18) T FAE TR B (HFE18) 1,273
Inventories EE 90
Amount due from a minority equity owner U D E R E ARIE 1,425
Other receivables H th & W FRIB 148
Cash and cash equivalents e kReEEY 16,383
Other payables H fth & S 3R I8 (653)
Tax payable FESBIE (431)
Net assets disposed of Tt EEEFE 23,542
Release of exchange reserve ME 5 RO (16,456)
Direct costs incurred on disposal WEMEE 2 EEKA 877
7,963
Gain on disposal (note 12) &z s (FisE12) 11,593
Total consideration BR(E 19,556
Satisfied by: YRAR
Cash consideration received BUIRERE 1,500
Note receivable JE U =1 18,056

HEMEE 2R MAFR
EWRREKE 1,500
FEERENESEEYHER

disposed of (16,383)
Cash paid for direct costs incurred MAEAEERAST N ZRE (877)
(15,760)
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. HEMEBAS &)
(a) Disposal of subsidiaries during the year (a) HE2009F12A31HIEEER
ended 31 December 2009 (Continued) HEMBAS (&) 5

The subsidiary disposed of contributed HK$19,279,000 to
the Group’s turnover and profit of HK$2,422,000 during the
year up to the date of disposal.

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2008

On 4 November 2008, the Group entered into an
agreement with National Top Holdings Limited (“NTH”),
an independent third party, to dispose of the entire equity
shares of Statemoon, a subsidiary of the Group to NTH for
a consideration of HK$15,000,000. Statemoon is engaged
in the operation of natural gas pipeline network. The
transaction was completed on 18 December 2008. The
disposal was disclosed as discontinued operations set out
in note 12.

Details of the net assets of Statemoon as at the completion
date of disposal were as follows:

FREZHEBRH HEMNBRARAR
£ E &5 EE19,279,000/8 T 0 W &
B 2,422,000 7T °

(b) #HE2008F12A31HIEEER
HEMBAT

MR2008F11 A48 - "EBEB L F =
EESEEBRA A ((HSEE] T
e RESEELREASECZHER
BBl Wz 28k - (& 7%&15,000,000
BT -BRMREERAREERBRE
1% o RIEAXR HM2008F12 A18H 52X °
ZHERE AN FI2AEH 2B RIERL
% -

MREETKBERZEEFEFBN

- =

2008

HK$’ 000

T T

Property, plant and equipment (note 17) Y BER&E(HE17) 93,458

Amounts due from related parties JE U B BsE N - 3R IB 3,586

Amount due from a equity owner R AR R A AR 5,487

Net assets disposed of Frh&EEEFE 102,531

Loss on disposal (note 12) HEZEE (ME12) (87,531)

Total consideration BR(E 15,000

Satisfied by: TRAR

Cash consideration received BKBEERE 1,500

Note receivable (note 27) FEN = 1% (Bt E27) 13,500
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEMEEZRERAFRE

Cash consideration received BRBEESKE 1,500

The subsidiary disposed of contributed HK$2,674,000 to
the Group’s turnover and a loss of HK$3,898,000 during the
year up to the date of disposal.

FRNEEHERH HEHBRARA AR
& B & 35 5 ER2,674,0005 7T 0 I EE
[E583,898,000/% 7T ©
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37. ACQUISITIONS DURING THE YEAR

(a) Toppace Limited

On 17 February 2009, the Company acquired 100%
of the issued capital of Toppace Limited. On the same
date, a subsidiary of Toppace Limited entered into a
transfer agreement with Shenzhen Yong You Investment
Development Company Limited (“Yong You”), an
independent third party, which was established in the
PRC. Pursuant to the transfer agreement, the subsidiary
acquired all the rights and obligations of Yong You under
a development contract which enabled the subsidiary to
participate in an oil exploitation project for exploitation and
development of a number of oil wells located in Ganquan
County, Shaanxi Province, the PRC (the “Liuluoyu oil field”)
for a period up to 2023. The subsidiary also acquired, under
the transfer agreement, the business assets and liabilities of
Yong You associated with the operation of the oil wells and
the rights to use the on site plant, machinery and facilities
for the exploration, evaluation and exploitation of the ail
wells.

As supported by a legal opinion issued by a firm of PRC
lawyers, the directors are of the opinion that the Group is
entitled to the rights and obligations of the development
contract and participate in the exploitation and production
of crude ail in the Liuluoyu oil field. Since the Group has in
practice the power to govern the financial and operational
policies of the exploitation and production operations, the
Group has consolidated the results of oil production of the
Liuluoyu oil field from 17 February 2009.

37. ERUEE

(@) ERARAT

AR BR2009F2A17RREBEALARR
RAZEREBRTHEAR -RAA - EFR
BERARN—HNEARE-HRFTE
PRS2 B E =F RN HERRE %
RERAR (BRI LEEGZ R
BEREWE ZMEARKBREAR
NERZFBRNEELE  EXWBR
A2 HEFAREAELNPERAEH
REZZEMAZAHRAFREAR (MY
WA h 1) E20234 - % M B~ A MR &
EEMZRBERER DA EETH X
BEERBBEARMEE - 7FE RFEK
M ERBRE - B3N RIEZERN o

ERBERMEFAOAEZARER R
T EZRA/AKEHREERESR T2
R KB AL - WAl 2 EAYR IR i B R
MRMEEE ARAEEREERED
EERRREELEIMHREERR
B itk A< 52 B B $2009F2 417 A & #5 #)
SRR A Z AR EEEERE AR -
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37. ACQUISITIONS DURING THE YEAR (continued) ~ 37. SERUBE (=)
(a) Toppace Limited (Continued) (a) BERBRAT (&)
The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired, PR BE R R EAEREGGB Y AT E B §

purchase consideration and goodwill were as follows:

EREERBENT :

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHT FHET
Fair value of assets and liabilities kB EERBEZATE
acquired
Property, plant and equipment M - R R EE
(note 17) (P 7E17) 46,441
Intangible assets EREE
— participation in oil exploitation — 2B A H AR
(note 19) (FF5E19) 42,531
Cash at banks RITIRE 11
Trade and other receivables JE LSz B SR % H At JE W SRR 5,661
Trade and other payables J& 45T BR 3k & H i A< 5RIE (16,070)
Deferred tax liabilities EETIEAE (10,932)
67,642
Satisfied by: AR :
Cash Re 36,400
Issue of ordinary shares at BAFEZETEBR
fair value(note 35 (a)(iii) (Bt 5E35(a) (iii)) 26,811
Assignment of a note receivable at 1R BRE (B % E W = &
carrying value (notes 27 and 38) (Bt sE27 }238) 12,661
75,872
Goodwill (note 20) 72 (M 5E20) 8,230
Net cash outflow arising from WEMELAZRSRLIFE =
acquisition: o
Cash consideration paid BERNESKE (36,400) g
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrUiBEIR & NI S EEY 11 o
i’
&
(86,389) =
T
[=(
The fair value of the shares issued was determined by BTG T ATE R ERIE A ﬁ
refer(ler?cle to the guoted marketl price of at the date of AT EE T o FEU S IE RN % E %?:.;%
acquisition. The fair vallue of rece|valb|es arlwd payaples were AT EESEWEY EmEER - =
the same as the carrying amounts immediately prior to the b
acquisition. |
11

e
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37. ACQUISITIONS DURING THE YEAR (Continued)
(@) Toppace Limited (Continued)
Included in turnover and loss of the Group for the year
is approximately turnover of HK$10,206,000 and profit
of HK$2,261,000 attributable to the additional business
generated by Toppace Limited and its subsidiaries since
they were acquired by the Group in February 2009.

Had this business combination been effected at the
beginning of the year, the turnover of the Group would have
been increased by HK$11,319,000, and the loss for the
year would have been reduced by HK$2,521,000.

(b) Yanjiawan Oil Field

On 7 September 2009, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into an assignment agreement with Shenzhen Feng Yuan
Information Consultants Limited, an independent third
party which was established in the PRC (the “Assignor”),
pursuant to which the subsidiary acquired all the rights and
obligations under a development contract which enabled the
subsidiary to participate in an oil exploitation project for the
exploitation of a number of oil wells located in Yanjiawan,
Shaanxi Province, the PRC for a period to 2023. The
subsidiary also acquired under the assignment agreement,
the business assets and liabilities of the Assignor associated
with the Yanjiawan oil field operation and the rights to use
the on site plant, machinery and facilities for the exploration,
evaluation and exploitation of the oil wells.

As supported by a legal opinion issued by a firm of PRC
lawyers, the directors are of the opinion that the Group is
entitled to the rights and obligations of the development
contract and participate in the exploitation and production
of crude ail in the Yanjiawan oil field. Since the Group has in
practice the power to govern the financial and operational
policies of the exploitation and production operations, the
Group has consolidated the results of oil production of the
Yanjiawan oil field from 7 September 2009.

37. FRUEE =)

(a) ERBRAT (&)

FANEXEBRASE 2 BEDHEES
20092 A AR W g = B R A 7l R A
BB ARMEEBINEBEN 2 &%
10,206,000/ 7T & & #1/2,261,0007 7T °

WMEZEBAHREVNER  AEBZE
¥ =N T11,319,0005 7T » M AFEE
518 BIRL 4> 72,521,000/ 7T ©

(b) REREhE
R2009F9A7H - A&EE —FEHE A A
B — R R B AL 2 B 57 % = & BRI
MEREEXANBRAR ([BEALDT
VEEWE B ZMBARWER
éAﬁWZﬁﬁ*ﬁ%ﬂ REE EZHE
TT/AEﬁ%UEAEFI@KEé eS|
/EE#ZE/EES‘%]{KIEE F?ﬁ?ﬁﬁzﬁﬁj:
20234 & ° % M B 2 B T AR 12 88 % 15
mRBER ALBHKERAEH XK
BERBENRERYE  FH RFEFM
HERBE - =W SRR Z R o

EHEEZMEBIE A ZEE R
T EERALEEEERBERATZ
BN REE - LA 2 HEERE 0SB RS
FAERREE BHRASEHEEERET
EERRREEZDE VR EBEHER

F It A &£ B 2 ;H2009F9 A7 H B #8 B R
EHBAzABEEXRAERE AR
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37. ACQUISITIONS DURING THE YEAR (Continued)  317.

(b) Yanjiawan Oil Field (Continued)
The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired,

purchase consideration and discount on acquisition were as
follows:

o]
_1 ™
iﬁ:
"5__ ¥
FERUEE =)
(b) BEREMHEZ)
BT BRI ESERGE AFE B

BEREREETROT :

HK$’ 000
F& T
Fair value of assets and liabilities acquired FiEEEREBEZAFEE
Property, plant and equipment (note 17) Y - BEREE(WHE17) 37,792
Intangible assets B EAE
— participation in oil exploitation (note 19) — 2B HRAR(FE19) 4,198
Trade and other receivables JE LS AR SR % EL A i W R IE 759
Trade and other payables FE AT BR 3R N HL A FE A 3008 (373)
Deferred tax liabilities FRERIBBEE (1,529)
40,847
Satisfied by: SHRAR
Cash B& 36,262
Excess of the Group’s share of net fair value &£ EE ARG 2
of the interests acquired over the cost FAFTEESRBAKEZ
of acquisition (note 7) F 58 (K aE7) (4,585)

Included in turnover and loss of the Group for the year
is approximately turnover of HK$3,860,000 and profit
of HK$650,000 attributable to the additional business
generated by the Yanjiawan oil field project since it was
acquired by the Group in September 2009.

It was not practical for the Group to obtain accurate
information on the revenue and result of the Yanjiawan oil
field operation for the period from 1 January 2009 to the
date of acquisition.

FAREE cEXZBREBED R BE
H2009F9R R el EER K E MHEIEE
ARFTEEBINEBREZEERL
3,860,000/ 7t & & $1650,0007 7T °

74 % [ 7 A 7] B2 R /5.7 508 e F £ 2009
F1ATAE WS AR BB R
2 REER -

—
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38.

39.

SIGNIFICANT NON-CASH
TRANSACTIONS

(@) During the year, the Group acquired a subsidiary
at a consideration of HK$75,872,000, of which
HK$26,881,000 was settled by the issuance of
72,463,768 shares of the Company (note 35 (a)(iii))
and an assignment of a note receivable with a carrying
value of HK$12,661,000 (note 27).

(b) During the year, the Group disposed of a subsidiary
for a consideration of HK$19,556,000, of which
HK$18,056,000 is to be settled by a note receivable.
(Note 36(a)) This note was subsequently assigned to
the controlling equity holder as settlement of part of
the loans from the controlling equity holder.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
equity holder and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher equity holder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the capital structure of the
Group consists of net debts, which include other payables
and accruals, convertible note and loans from a controlling
equity holder, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure regularly. As part
of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issue as well as the issue of new debts or the
repayment of existing debts.

38.

39.

EXBREXD

@ # A" X £ BB KR B
75,872,000,000% Jt 4t & — [
i B A7) H#26,881,000/%8 T
LA 34T N R R]72,463,7680% i
7 (M 5E35(a)(ii) R EEEEE A
12,661,000/ 7T 2 F& W = & (Fff 5
27) X it e

b) FA - ANEBEBAK(E19,556,0007%
THEMB AR - H+18,056,000
BT A E R R A (K
36(a) cZEBHEBEETERR
R AR ZERBREER -

EXEHE

AEEEREAZEZRARDREARE
ERERMEBAFBELEEERLE 1t
7B R E K AR E 2 E m MRS E
ENRBEGEERAZRE #HERK
BEEAERREAEMASEEE

5 5 2 -

AEEBEELEAHEAREFRR B
RER  KMERSEEKFEBERTA
RELZBESBREREARNRER A
AR R 2 45 B AR B 2 TRV BRAS 7 1
YHARKEEREZBICHERARBIEL

A% -

ERRTRERZERT  ARE2E
ARBOEFEY HPRENRRS
BB S S ENRAD RSB AL
W3 (R IED BT R 2 K
NHERBRER - TAKRERRER
BRZEHK -

EETHHEARBETRT - RFT 2
THEZ-REFUHEARAKAREBRENR
ZHBRRETES REEFZES
AEBEREBI MRS - HRET
THREGREEREEY EBEE
RIRBRE T -
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39. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued) 30. EXAEE (w)
The net debts-to-equity ratios at 31 December 2009 and TR20094F & 2008F 12 A31H 2 &5 /F#E
2008 were as follows: iR XA : -
The Group
AEHE
2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTERT T T
Total debts: BEBE
Other payables and accruals HippetERTERE R 21,767 16,532
Convertible note Il & 16,824 =
Amount due to a controlling JE AT 42 I A 2R F TR
equity holder 46,521 -
85,112 16,532
Less: Cash and cash equivalents IR MRS EFEEY (10,535) (19,622)
Net debts/(excess of cash and EXFE/ (RekBELSE
cash equivalents over debts) VIR B ERR) 74,577 (3,090)
Equity T 148,291 132,429
Net debts-to-equity ratio B FEH R X 50% N/A 3 B
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject ARl REEAMERAEAZINDE
to externally imposed capital requirements. Mo BRI EFTIHR ©
b
H_
(o))
o
o
N
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&
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=
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40. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

(@) Critical judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies
(i) Recognition of share-based expenses
The Company has granted share options to
employees. Management has used valuation model to
determine the total fair value of the options granted,
which is to be expensed over the vesting period.
Significant judgement, such as risk free rate, dividend
yield and expected volatility and expectations of early
exercise, is required to be made by management
as the parameters for applying the valuation model.
Accordingly, any changes to the variables adopted
may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of
share options.

(i) Participation in oil exploitation in the PRC

By way of a transfer agreement and an assignment
agreement, the Group has acquired the rights and
obligations of two development contracts. Each
development contract enables the Group to participate
in an oil exploitation project to produce crude oil in an
oil field in the PRC. Significant judgement is required
from the directors that the Group has the rights to
participate in, and the power to govern the financial
and operational policies of the exploitation and
production of crude oil in oil fields in the PRC so that
the Group is entitled to consolidate the results from
the operation of these oil exploitation projects into the
results of the Group.

40.

EXETHER G FHBAE
R2ETEHER

RERBANEE 2 BRE  EFA5
AEREMKERBZEERABZRK
HE B A B A5 R BRER - b st & A8

BARRLIREBEEEER MEMBERSE
BAZMEL - BERXEAEARIN
& EfhE o

B REERRERFEEER - @
FHEE TR Z BRI R % B aHER] 2 B ]
MR (el EFEZMME) Tkﬁﬁﬂk
FTEAR R R BRI MR (MR BRI R &
B RARKAR) -

(a) AREBHBEFEAZEX
EEEL]
) BRAUBHIHZEZE
AAREREREFHBERE -&
BEEDHAGERN  BTEED
BREZRATE  WiEREED
B 8H - B8 [E A {E 82 A FI B -
ERRAZMEERN 228 &

R E - IREX  HEKELTE

HAR B 47(F - AUt - FIER N 2 Al &
A=BEEEMEHFEBEREQT
BEZEFTENERZE o

(i) R EIR AR
BBBER LB RDE  AKE
ENRIWREMNHFAESR 2 EM &
B -BOHFABEREAEEANZ
EAmMAREAER  RNPBEZRAE
FEE cBEFRAFHERHAE - R

RASEER2E  WERMNEE
‘:F' !/EE EHJ?/EE F#EJ%&EEZEM%&
LEBR-HI AEEAERSE
A mRAREAR 2 XEINAKER
RZEHEN
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40. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 40. E XS5 HE R &5 A AR

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued) b
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) fEEFEHBAERZ EEER
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies RERAAEE S HE (SRME4) 2
which are described in note 4, management has made wREF  EEEERmEHARE RS G
certain key assumptions concerning the future and other ST REERZEZARREHEAMEZRIRE
key sources of estimated uncertainty at the end of reporting HETEERER BEBERAIEEEE
period, that may have a significant risk of causing a material AR TEFREEHSEENEBGBZERR
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities BEEHEAABRZEARR 0T X
within the next financial year, as discussed below. Bl
() Impairment of property, plant and equipment and ) YE BERIKERHEEE
prepaid lease payments 19 5028 8 18
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of BEZAWEEAE FEBNGE
its net selling price and value in use. In assessing value RAEEzRS®E T EFERER
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted B BB AT IR = K Est 2 B &
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate ReneMRERNE MAEBITE
that reflects current market assessments of the time KARBIBEMIST G2/ 2
value of money and the risks specific to the asset, FEEKEEERBZFERR -
which requires significant judgement relating to level B AR ZE S U A K E R AR B R & 5B
of revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group VEXE RHE - NEBERNBEER
uses all readily available information in determining EERE KB CEIESEBGHE -
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of BIFEENREERAZFHZEBEUAR
the recoverable amount, including estimates based HWARKLSER ZHEE - (H51 4
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and M SB) e EE 2 REEBERK
projections of revenue and operating costs. Changes BEAFTE - WAl BB IR R 2K HAME
in these estimates could have a significant impact on SHERBINBER X ek (R E R E] o
the carrying value of the assets and could result in
additional impairment charge or reversal of impairment
in future periods.
(i) Impairment of receivables (i) JEYFIE R AE
The Group maintains impairment allowance for R EFRERBERE  AEER _
doubtful accounts based upon evaluation of the T 3 FE U BR R N B pE IR FhIE (Y K
recoverability of the trade receivables and other EA) A E 2 5B R ERE R 2
receivables, where applicable, at each the end of WEEE o ZEMET DIREEWER &
reporting period. The estimates are based on the R E b e W RIE 4 2 BR B K B l|.E
ageing of the trade receivable and other receivables EME SRR IEL - WHIBR W E 2 K S
balances and the historical write-off experience, net TH o MEBEAZW R REZ - 7] Iﬁ
of recoveries. If the financial condition of the debtors e EIEHBEINRE LR o ]
were to deteriorate, additional impairment allowance i_;:'i
may be required. 33“%
iR
@

EZ2ETEEE 2
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40. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

40. EXE:HFIET R G5T AHBAE
EZ2ETEEE 2

(b) EEFFHABERRZETEERR (&)

(Continued)

(i) Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number
of jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
may exist transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred tax assets and tax in the periods in which
such estimate is changed.

(iv)  Contingencies

Periodically, the Group assesses potential liabilities
related to any lawsuits or claims brought against the
Group or any asserted claims. Although it is typically
very difficult to determine the timing and ultimate
outcome of such actions, the Group uses its best
judgement to determine if it is probable that it will
incur an expense related to the settlement or final
adjudication of such matters and whether a reasonable
estimation of such probable loss, if any, can be made.
In accordance with HKAS 37, Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, the Group accrues
a liability when it believes a loss is probable and the
amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. Due
to the inherent uncertainties related to the eventual
outcome of litigation, although the Group believes
that the estimates and judgements are reasonable,
it is possible that certain matters may be resolved
for amounts materially different from any estimated
provisions or previous disclosures.

(i) AT H R T A

REBEEHMNE TR AR ZFE
HeoBEMEHEGRSEEELE
NAE - T2 R 5 METEF/AER
BESBEPHURERRFE -
NEEZRE S IR EINEZ T IE
2 EFTERTEM S EZEENE
EZBE MEZEEEZHERG
HREBYREZSBETR  ZF
=S8R EEATHE 2
Fr 1S 75 MO SE T T8 22 4 o

HREEER R R BRI AN A
EERRBHERZAKHEARE
WHEREE TEREZRLRIARBE
BFRZELERBEERE - WIRHA B
REAGE  FREZESR ARG
AEBCHREEECREEER
IR 2 FER ©

(iv) ZEBFHE
REETEHRTEEANBBEARAEE
12 2 5F 7A 5k FR 2R ok {F fr] 2 7E AR
R2BEAB - BE—MMms &N
BEZEEA s REARERER
AEBBELREHEHEESEERE
MR KRR HRZ EE B M = £
X ARBEBHZEA L EE (10
B)EHEEMF - BREEESE
ERNEI7THRER A BFEERAE
BE ANEBEREMBAEBITELR
EREVAI GG EECERES
BE HRFRAELRERRNEZT
BrRxE BEAEEBEMHAK
HETBEE DAgERETER
BERSREEMAETEBI LRI E
EHBEEREER o
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40. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 40. E XS5 HE R &5 A AR

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION E2EEWRE 2

UNCERTAINTY (Continued) p

(b) EEFFHBRERZETEERR (&)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(v)  Oil reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group’s oil reserves are
inherently imprecise and represent only approximate
amounts because of the subjective judgements
involved in developing such information. There are
authoritative guidelines regarding the engineering
criteria that have to be met before estimated oil
reserves can be designated as ‘proven’ and ‘probable’.
Proven and probable oil reserve estimates are
updated on regular intervals taking into account recent
production and technical information about each oil
field. In addition, as prices and cost levels change
from year to year, the estimate of proven and probable
oil reserves also changes. This change is considered
a change in estimate for accounting purposes and is
reflected on a prospective basis in related amortisation
of intangible assets rate.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering
estimates, these estimates are used in determining
amortisation charges and impairment losses. The
capitalised costs of oil exploitation rights are amortised
using the units of production method based on the
proven and probable oil reserves. The useful lives are
reviewed annually in accordance with the production
plans of the Group and the proven and probable
reserves of the oil fields.

(vi)  Estimation of assets retirement obligations
Provision is recognised for the future decommissioning

v) BAHFEE
ERNGRUBHAER PR EEFIE -
AEEBGBFEEC LB EEA
FERrEEE WEBREHE £
mErABFEEnEERKARKE]
RIEEHFE] 2 FEERSE
TERAIEEEZERERES - &
AR ARFESE 2Bt AEHE
o WEtASERESEZEER
MG ER o fboh - AR ERE KA
KR FEETE - FAitt - R RHEE
AHFEEZ e HBEE o 3
FTEMME - ZEEEAGHE
FEE WIRTEHEERMARE S
EREEHEESD o

BELIRMBAFAREZ THE
o EREEARFEEHEE
R R R R - &AL A B R E
AR IR B I HE T AR R B A R
BAOA#H - IERERREBEAE
Bz & E A8 KoM B 2 R B E
E  BFEH K-

(i) HEEREHEZ G5
AEERABREERKRZIRERE

and restoration of oil properties. The amounts of the BERREE  HESBARMFTARKA i
provision recognised are the present values of the YZBE - ARBEZ 2 G TER ki_
estimate future expenditure. The estimation of the EMBEAERAEEBBEREEL & §
future expenditure is based on current local conditions FEAEIRE R REBERKESE - °
and requirements, including legal requirements, BRZEAEN HABEELE E
technology, price level, etc. In addition to these M7t eEEETARKAS 2 o
factors, the present values of these estimated future BE TR ZEH 22 EFE g
expenditure are also impacted by the estimation of AEBRAREE 2R &EFH &
the economic lives of oil properties. Changes in any of N 24L& 2GS N BT IS AR o i
these estimates will impact the operating results and ﬁ
the financial position of the Group over the remaining =

economic lives of the oil properties.

N
N —
(9]
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management
policies and practices described below.

(@) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations, and arises primarily from
the Group’s trade and other receivables and cash with
banks.

(i) Trade and other receivables

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset, in the
statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowance. The Group does not provide
any guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group had
a certain concentration of credit risk as 49% (2008:
65%) of total trade and other receivables was from
a single debtor. Subsequently, the amount was fully
settled.

(i) Cash with banks

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by placing
cash and deposits with financial institutions that meet
the established credit rating or other criteria. Given
these high credit ratings, management does not
expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group had a
certain concentration of credit risk as 48% (2008: 59%)
of total cash and cash equivalents were deposited at
one financial institution in Hong Kong with high credit
ratings.

M. HBREEER

EE RPED MXRIIERBRER
AEBZBEREBBETEL - ZFM
RIEBRNRE M BEERRERTER
(RT3 BIARS -

(a) EERKE
%Eﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁi/ﬁ%ﬁilﬂ?&%ﬁT\

BEEITANEEMBERAE B KEIE
Zﬂ CBRRRETERBAEE &
W BR SR K% At fE WO I R ERITIR € ©

() ERERFRE M ERFHR
AEBEZEERRTIZRE RN
AR EMERHIE - EEEARE
ZEERER  UERHEEEMAR
ZHEEERR -

iR 2 & KEERR ST BN
RESMEEEZRAEREEM
EEER - NEB IR A EHEM
BR BEASEAZEERR -

20094 F 2008412 A31H © |
49% (20084 : 65% ) 2 & U Bk
FREAMEWRIBRREYRE E—
EHA BRAEERYETEE
SHRKHE  ZeBEC2EE

f& -

(i) MITHEZ

REBFHE € REFRRITE#KE

L‘mﬂfﬁf:fﬁﬂfx R EI B
EHZRAGEET R EMBE -

ENZEVBHRBESEETAR
5 BEREERAYEEARSAT
RREITHEEAME-

20094 2008% 12 A31H » A&
EEREETEESETRRE BA
48% (20084 : 59% ) 2R & kIR
CEEVMRBINEHRES —KA
BB R HBHEA -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when due, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans
to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the Company’s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The contractual maturities of financial liabilities are shown as

41.

MERRER 2

(b) REELEE
RBELAEB N AEBRENPBEE
IR BETEREAZAR AEEE
BRYEL Y I EERERRABRY
RBELENIPEE SALEEAR
ARETREZ Y BREREETE -

AEEBETEILEERBTEERS
R BREAECEBKZEHRENREE
NRAERRER R EHEESHE
BEAEECERERERALARAE
EefE - AEBZRRAEHRERE
MBESFELNEATETRERY
NHEREEFEHZHESREELBERA
BREBES UREZTZUBHRE
ZIEERERAENEERRERR

REBE -

MBREZEHIBBERET

below:
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
The Group amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years
BHRIAH 1A 1£LE 2£UE
3 5E REE ReRE BREX  E2EUT  {E5ENT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TiER TEL TR TERT
2009 20095
Non-derivatives: FEHTAE -
Other payables and accruals HENFERERER 21,330 21,330 21,330 - -
Amount due to a minority equity holder EN—BHREAR
of a subsidiary RRTE 270 210 270 - -
Amount due to a controlling equity holder e R R A
- non current - 3ERNE 46,521 54,262 - 54,262 -
Amount due to directors EREZHE 167 167 167 - -
Convertible note MAREE 16,824 27,000 500 500 26,000
85,112 103,029 22,267 54,762 26,000

B AR 2A A e 2009 F #H

T
=

Bl %7 B2 IR 4

—_
N —
~N

i
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

41. BB RIEERE @)

(b) HEEEREE(E)

Total More than More than
contractual Within 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
The Group amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years
G obis:) 1ER% A 2ENE
REE REE Rene RER  E2ENT  BSEMNT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT TAR THAT THT
2008 20085
Non-derivatives: FEATAE -

Other payables and accruals HiENFERERER 6,910 - = =
Amount due to a controling equity holder JEf R R A 8,721 = = =
Amount due to director EREZHE 901 - - -

16,532 16,532 - - -

(c) Interest rate risk

Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. The Group’s interest rate
risk arises primarily from its convertible note and amount
due to controlling equity holders which bears a fixed coupon
rate of 2% per annum and interest free respectively. The
Group has no cash flow interest rate risk as there are no
borrowings which bear floating interest rates. The Group
has not used any financial instruments to hedge potential
fluctuations in interest rates. Details of the interest rate and
term of repayment of the convertible note and amounts due
to a controlling equity holder are set out in notes 31 and
44(d) respectively.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
recognised assets and liabilities that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. At 31 December 2009 and 2008, no
related hedges were made by the Group.

In respect of other receivables and payables held in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures that the
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances.

(c) FIzx:[ %

7N 5 B A f A] B E) Al & K B E ) KR
ZEBEIREAZReRENERR R A
FENERERR ANEEBZMERAREE
R H AR E IR K E AR AR AR SR RIE
DREEEFEEE2%TEREE ° H
RAEE W EIRZBMEFBZEE
H bt 7S = B IR 2 2 A R E g o AR
SEVEFCATRNERIT AR X
BERE A MREBZNERERSF
HLA R FE S 1 AR AR SR SR TE 2 5¥ 1B 9 Bl &k
R 5E31 K44(d) °

(d) SRS
REBEAZ s EERBREEZRB NG
EB e EB NN EBGHEZE T
REEKARE - B20094F K2008F12 A
318 - RE B EAEL BRI LA o

HABRAER 2N BB AN B R
B EMERREREMNRE  AEE
FENERIZ B HIIE R 8 B IME AR E
BRI AR F R B E R A # %
IKFE o
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)  41. A5 R PG EE (#)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥EMEZ)

(i) Exposure to currency risk ()  BEREZEEER [ -
TRESIFEBMRBEMNHLERE
HARRASHEERE ZEER I
SNz BB EZRERRBEMAR
ZEBERERE - BRESINEE
SEANRRRZAER - Mk FER
TABTTHAE T 2 e K ® SN 2

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the end of reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. The sensitivity analysis
includes balances between group companies where

the denomination of the balances is in a currency =8 o
other than the functional currencies of the lender or
the borrower.
The Group *EE
2009 2008
United United
Australian States Australian States
dollars  dollars Renminbi dollars dollars  Renminbi
BT T ARE RIT ET  ARE
’000 ’000 000 000 000 000
o T T T T T
Trade and other receivables U B 0 L A B IR IR - 14 573 = = 483
Note receivable * e 1,943 - - 1,043 = =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 1 1 11 - 3 12
Amounts due from group B B 2 R FRIE
companies - 8,091 1,871 - 11,946 11,349
Trade and other payables 55 B 0 e L At B £+ 3R IE - - (42) = = (42)
Amount due to a controlling ~ FEfHZARAR R A
equity holder - - (12,361) - - (3,188)
Amounts due to group ANESEING
companies MR - (2,539 - = = =
DEX
Overall net exposure BERRFE 1,944 5,567 (9,948) 1,943 11,949 8,614 K
(o))
S
* Included in Interest in a jointly controlled entity L MARHRIZEHEEELATZEE ‘:‘
[T
&
o
i
=
&
0%
ki
iR
@

—_
N —
(o]
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

41. BB RIEERE @)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥EMEZ)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) HEESIT
The following table indicates the approximate change TERERNREHR LR AE
in the Group’s loss after income tax expenses (and B 15 B & A JEL [ > SN E FE =R ] 4
accumulated losses) and other components of S F B ER AN EBGRRIEER (&
consolidated equity in response to reasonably possible 2HER) ARG SRS EMAR
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the ER T M4 E) o BIRE DT B IR
Group has significant exposure at the reporting period. EERNATIR &8 MzEsss
The sensitivity analysis includes balances between TIABE S 2 e S I >
Group companies where the denomination of the EHEEE o (Y TR A SR > B
balances is in a currency other than the functional RS . PLNIESERERRE M
currencies of the lender or the borrower. A positive RESIE N o BB TR A S Y IE
number below indicates an increase in loss and RGeS - Bl A e S R B i iE S
other equity where the HKD strengthens against the ERASEERERANR ZZE I
relevant currency. For a weakening of the HKD against TMate B8 -
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the loss and other equity, and the
balances below would be negative.
The Group *EE
2009 2008
Decrease/
(increase) Increase
in loss after Effect on in loss after Effect on
taxation and other taxation and other
Strengthening accumulated components  Strengthening  accumulated  components
in HKD losses of equity in HKD losses of equity
REEBRE  HEZRM BREER Bzt
REBR anBs SEFTE g
EHE B/ (Em) £7 BLIHE B LEE
% HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 % HK$’ 000 HK$'000
% T#T TR % TAL THEL
Renminbi AR 3% 366 - 3% 362 -
Australian dollars SR IT 10% (1,058) - 10% 1,056 -

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had
occurred at the end of reporting period and had been
applied to each of the Group entities’ exposure to
currency risk for the financial instruments in existence
at that date, and that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant.

BRE DN IRRIMERE R 2 Z B H
EHRAERBEBEEREHAEEET
RERERAZBFEZERIAMIR
ZEEBER MAAHEGBEHR(CLER
&) RFFAEE o
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the end of the
next reporting period. In this respect, it is assumed
that the pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar
and the United States dollar would be materially
unaffected by any changes in movement in value of
the United States dollar against other currencies.
Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the effects on each
of the Group entities’ loss after income tax expenses
and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period for
presentation purposes. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2008.

(e) Commodity price risk

The Group engages in petroleum-related activities. The oil
market is affected by global and regional demands and
supplies. Prices of onshore crude oil are determined with
reference to the prices of crude oil on the international
markets. A decline in the prices of crude oil and refined
products could adversely affect the Group’s financial
position. The Group historically has not used derivative
financial instruments to hedge against potential price
fluctuations of crude oil.

(f) Fair values

The fair values of all financial assets and liabilities are not
materially different from their carrying amounts except for
the liability component of the convertible note. The fair value
of the liability component of the convertible note at the
end of reporting period is HK$20,438,000 (2008: HK$NIil)
whereas its carrying amount is HK$16,824,000 (2008:
HK$Nil).

Fair value has been determined either by reference to
the market value at the end of reporting period or by
discounting the relevant cash flows using current interest
rates for similar instruments.

41. BB RIEERE @)

(d) E¥EMEZ)

(i) RS (B

Pt BEEEREHAEET —@
¥R HA A 2R LR IR 2 SN BE =R 7]
EREZEHZHE UM E -
REBTRETZBEERTER
AETHBEGER ZEAEEE
HBERTE - ERINITZAWAE
REHAEEET S ERBIZSE
ERFEYRBREMESRE 2
TTEXBRESBTUERZINZAZ
BRHREERENRER I ERE - %
DM TH IR 2008 A 2 HEHE
17

(e) BREHERE
REBNWELELRAREL - ABT
BEXEREMEERKERZE L
FROME Ty 2 REIBR T 15 2 R B 1% 7
TE o FRM R 5 R EE fn (B 1% T B8 A g 3 A
SEFBRAERKIFNZE A AELAE
8 5 20094F K 20084F Fi & % 2 B B
BB NEE  WASEBETRKEA
P OT A T A SRR B B8 K E o

(l 2FE
EMBEERBEZ A FEEERE

BZRELSEEAEZER  RIBRKRER
ZEERD - ABRREEZEBEDHRN
8B 2 AF{E 520,438,000 7T (2008
) A AR E £16,824,00078 7T
(20084 : %) -

RHEEB2EREHREERK 2HE -
SERRUTAZEMMNEEEER S
MEBETHRAZTAERE

B AR 2A A e 2009 F #H

T
=

Bl %7 B2 IR 4

—
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—
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42,

43.

COMMITMENTS
At 31 December 2009 and 2008, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
were payable as follows:

42,

e
R20094F K2008F12A31H » FERT A A]
BiH S E s xEBEFKBEBNT ¢

The Group
AEE
2009 2008
Within 1 year 1E A 1,656 2,415
After 1 year but within 5 years 112 E5F A 1,656 85
3,312 2,500

The Group is the lessee of a number of properties held
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to two years without an extension option.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group is committed to develop in total 19 new oil wells
under the development contracts as mentioned in notes
37(a) and 37(b). The estimated total capital expenditure for
developing these new oil wells is HK$17.3 million.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Environmental liabilities

The Group has oil exploitation operation in the United States
of America (the “USA”) and the PRC. Both the USA and
the PRC have adopted environmental laws and regulations
that affect the operation of the oil industry. The outcome
of environmental liabilities under proposed or future
environmental legislation cannot reasonably be estimated at
present, and could be material. Under existing legislation,
however, management believes that there are no probable
liabilities that will have a material adverse effect on the
financial position of the Group.

43.

AEERBRELKEHERAELZEYELZ
EEA—BME  ZFHEZNTH
BMNF1E2F Y EREHNEEE-FTE
HEMERELEES -

2N &= 8] B H 10 Bt 5E37(a) K37 (b) B 3ift B 3%
FEA R NS L19EHH - Btz
Eh 2 BEA Y 4% 517,300,000

7L

XAFER

AHARKRZER

RE BN R KBRS A RER
XBERTBEEETRRERNER &
EXRPERTEIN AR IR ZRE -
EEPRARRZRRLEMSI B ZER
RRZABBBAMHBEZAEMMAST A
BRIEEAN AWM REBERALZE B
BERS LA TFEEM A EEANEE
MBERARELEEREEZEZEE -
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44. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 4. EXFABALR S
TRANSACTIONS
The directors consider that the following are related parties B 220094 N2008F12HA31H It E e,
of the Group in the years ended 31 December 2009 and N BFRE AEEZBEBALNT :
2008.
Name of party Relationship with the Group
FAEE N L 278 BAEEZEHE
Hong Chang Group Limited Controlling equity holder of the Company, which is a company
(“Hong Chang Group”) controlled by Ms. Xing Xiao Jing, a former director
of the Company
BEEBEERAR(NEESR]) ANAF 2R - AR Z AT E 5 0B & & 12
Hong Chang China Limited (“HCC”) A wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Chang Group
BERBEERAR(EEHRE]) BEEB  2EWNBRA
ERSMMA AT Minority equity holder of a subsidiary which was disposed of
during the year (note 36)
—RARFPEEZMB AR 2 L ERERE A (FizE36)
Surplus Way Investments Limited (“SWI”) A wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Chang Group
BEFREBRAR ([BHEEKE]) BEEEZE2ENBE AR
Mar/Reg Oil Company Operator of a subsidiary
—ERBAREER
(a) Recurring transactions (a) EEHRS
(i) Sale of crude oil () HEEH
During the year, the Group sold crude oil of FR o ANEE MR ERZMar/
HK$584,000 (2008: HK$594,000) to Mar/Reg Oil Reg Oil Company it & B #584,000
Company in the USA. 77T (20084F : 594,000/ 7T) °
(i) Rental income (i)  FHABKA
During the year, the Group received rental income FA - A& B W — R A B HER ﬁ
of HK$582,422 (2008: HK$407,000) from a related A & W A582,4227% T (20084 : @
company. The spouse of Ms Xing Xiao Jing, a 407,000 7T) ° AR &l E R AR &R &
controlling equity holder of the Company, is a director MERZ T2 EEBRZEH AT l|.E
of that related company. o= &
.I:g\_i(
| - e b mmE o m e
The directors are of the opinion that the above related party EERA LBABMALTRZERBEE 2
transactions were conducted on normal commercial terms FE TG HRIE R IE R SR AR RUETT o i_;:'i
and in the ordinary course of business. »
iR
@

—_
w—
w
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44. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Non-recurring transactions
(i) During the year, the Company issued a
convertible note with nominal value of
HK$25,000,000 to Hong Chang Group. Details
are set out in note 31 to the financial statement.

(i) Disposal of property, plant and equipment

In 2008, the Group disposed of property, plant and
equipment to ERENTMIAR AR with carrying value of
HK$12,521,000.

(iii)  Indemnity

Ms. Xing Xiao Jing, a controlling equity holder and
the former director of the Company, had given
undertakings to indemnify the Group in connection
with all losses the Group might incur relating to
alleged loans and the alleged interest thereon of a
former subsidiary disposed of in 2007. The directors
are of the opinion that the risk of losses associated
with alleged loans and alleged interest as mentioned
above is now minimal. At the request of Ms. Xing, the
Company has agreed to release Ms. Xing from the
indemnity with effect from September 2009.

The directors are of the opinion that the above non-recurring
related party transactions, excluding items (i) above, were
conducted on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary
course of business.

(c) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 10 and all of the highest paid employees
as disclosed in note 11, is as follows:

44, EXFABALTR S @)

(b) FEEMRXS
() MER>AXNRQAENEAEE
25,000,0007% Jt % ) 7] #2 f%
ERLEEEE - FBRY
TEHMER 2 W FASTHRIEE ©

(i) HEYE - BERZE
MR20084F + N & B % Ik | B
12,521,000 T EWE - HE K
RETERIMRIAR] °

(i) FHIEIREE

ARARERBRRFAESBES
ZTEEERGH  BmEREANR
HAEBE—HB AR (B
R2007TFE L E) B EBERK
EFATHI 7 2 5 T8 A B B 4R K
HEe@REAEEMAST ZA AR
K- -BERAULEBZEBER
FHEAME 2 58 F 3R A Rk E
B ML ETBk  ARRIRER
200949 H FtA fEBR A B 2 R ELR

g o
BEERE FHFEEHEBABALIRS
(EXX&i)ERIN IR H B XK BRES
B IE & FEARFGETT ©

(c) EEEEASHS
AEETEERAEME (BFEME10
FIEBEZEMARAEEINZKEAR
MEMEEZERNE2BERHEEX
MZHE) W :

2009 2008

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FET T T

Short-term employee benefits HEEE R 4,909 6,011
Post-employment benefits BER 2R A 27 62
Equity settled share-based payments A% 78 45 & LA RS (5 2 f~F 2 7R I8 - 2,745
4,936 8,818

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
8(0)).

Me@BEETATEIRA]F (R
8(b)) °
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44. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

44,

BEXHABALTRS @)

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) Financing arrangements

(d) RAE=RHE
The Group

Amounts due to/(from)

related parties
As at 31 December

The Company
Amounts due to
related parties Year
ended 31 December

AEEES AT ESF
3]0 N o N BN T RIE
®12A31H HBE12A31BLERE
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET FAT THERT FAT
Amount due to/(from) e/ (FEUR) —FEIF B 2 &)
minority equity holders of LERER B A 2RI
a subsidiary, net 110 (1,690) - -
Amount due to a controlling &1~ 22 A& A% B8
equity holder FRIE 46,521 8,721 - =
Amounts due to directors BN E SR 167 901 167 901
46,798 7,932 167 901

Amount due to a controlling equity holder as at 31
December 2009 represented loans of HK$54,262,000 which
are unsecured, interest free and repayable in December
2011. The loans were stated at fair value as of the end of
the reporting period which was estimated by discounting
the nominal value of the loans at current market interest
rate of similar financial instruments. Imputed interest at 8%
per annum of HK$7,741,000 (2008: HK$NIl) was credited to
capital reserve during the year (note 35(c)(vi)).

The outstanding balances with other related parties are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
amounts due (from)/to related parties are included in “other
receivables, deposits and prepayments” and “other payables
and accruals” (notes 26 and 29).

TR20095F 12 A31 H & 15 4 A% B 3R FX I8

54,262,000/ T B EEH - 2 82 -

7 78

R2011F12AEE - ZZE RN RS H
MERRZRAFEE  mMAFERE
UEBMITAZRITMSMERTEERE
BETHEE - RFERN - BT FR8%Z
A £.7,741,000% 7T (20084 : &) 5t A
& A4 (I 5E85(c)(vi) °

HEMBBA T2 REEEHAER
B 2B RIZERER - (B BN
RAEE A T IE AT A [ H b fE YT 5B -
ReE REMFEIRIEMENKIERE
&R (MF26%29) -

B AR 2A A e 2009 F #H

T
=

Bl %7 B2 IR 4

—_
w—
(9]
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45. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 45 MBS ERMBEEZ Y EE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY =
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and MR20094F 22008512 A31 HIER 2 AN &
financial liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2009 and B BEEMVKABZREED B
2008 may be categorised as follows: T~
2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEX THET
Financial assets MBEE
Loans and receivables (including B3 K e W R IE
cash and bank balances) (BIRIR e MIBITHER) 19,862 40,238
Available-for-sale financial assets At E MBS EE - 1,431
Financial liabilities I aE
Financial liabilities measured R AT E
at amortised cost Z BB & 85,112 16,532
46. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD  46. {R& 2 E1E
On 26 March 2010, the Company entered into subscriptions H2010E3 H26H » A A &) A~ b R X
agreements with not less than six subscribers pursuant ZREANGIUREMZ BUNARAERA
to which the subscribers have conditionally agreed to BHEREZRZBRAQNAFIEHERZE
subscribed for and the Company has conditionally agreed % & 22174 $£874,000,0000% B& 17 - &
to allot and issue a total of 874,000,000 shares at a price of BEREM0.198E T - T B RNIBFXE
HK$0.198 per share. The net proceeds of HK$172,800,000 172,800,000 Lt H{E— R EEE &
are intended to be used for general working capital and/ R SRBENA AR E ZERDA
or possible investment opportunities. Details of these share BEEIE 75N AR 7 BHH A2010F
subscriptions are set out in the Company’s announcements 38268 K2010F4 8148 2 A fif o
dated 26 March 2010 and 14 April 2010.
47. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 47. LLEE
As a result of the separate presentation of the discontinued EMBT 2N E R IEEEERE A T
operations, certain comparative figures have been adjusted B TRABRSENDE UFAEN
or re-classified to conform with changes in disclosures in FEEWEEH o
the current year.
48. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  48. BA RSB R 2 =il

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the Board of Directors on 16 April 2010.

B HmERE AESZNR201064H16H
EN RIRETE -
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